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Chairman’s Statement

BV 28

2012 has been an intense year for the Group given the insurmountable
tasks that were accomplished and the phenomenal obstacles that were
overcome in restructuring the corporate businesses of the Group.
Conditions in Mongolia have remained hard to predict and given the
uncontrollable circumstances of recent political volatility and the logistics
and operational issues, the Group had to re-strategize its operations in the
country. The gold mining operation at the Khar Yamaat site and the iron
ore mining operation at the Oyut Ovoo site have remained suspended for
the interim.

The Group's diversification into coal trading and logistics in Mongolia has
been more productive. Utilization rates for the fleet of heavy duty trucks
have been improving and the logistics arm was able to operate effectively
during the peak transportation period in 2012. However, this business still
requires significant working capital before it can become a profitable
venture.

Our banking and finance systems integration services business has
maintained a steady performance this year. Sales and maintenance of
self-service equipment devoted to the banking sector have generated
positive returns. However, for this coming year, China's inflationary
economy and the exceedingly competitive environment may prove to be
an impeding factor for growth of the Group’s banking business.

During the second half of 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an acquisition agreement for the purchase of
certain coal mines in Shanxi Province from City Bloom Limited (“City
Bloom”) for an aggregate consideration of HK$4,662 million.
Contemporaneous with the signing of the acquisition agreement, the
Company also entered into a disposal agreement with Mountain Sky
Resources (Mongolia) Limited ("MSM"), a connected party of the Company,
for the disposal by the Company of its iron mining, coal trading, and
logistics businesses at a consideration of HK$600 million. To facilitate the
payment of consideration for the disposal agreement, MSM and City
Bloom also entered into an agreement in relation to the sale of MSM's
shares and convertible preference shares (“CPS") contemporaneously
with the entering into of the acquisition agreement and the disposal
agreement (the “Mountain Sky Agreement”).

After a lengthy negotiation process, the Company also managed to reach
an agreement with its convertible bond holder, Business Ally Investments
Limited (“Business Ally”), to capitalize part of the USD30 million convertible
bonds (the “USD30M CB") and to alter certain existing terms of the
remaining convertible bonds. Business Ally has also given its conditional
consent to the entering into of the agreements by the Company with City
Bloom and MSM and that they would not constitute a breach of the
existing terms of their convertible bonds.
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On 18 December 2012, the Company entered into a placing agreement
(the "Placing Agreement”) with a placing agent, pursuant to which
the placing agent has conditionally agreed to procure, on a best-effort
basis, placees to subscribe for new convertible bonds at the conversion
price of HK$0.31 per conversion share (the “New CBs") and promissory
notes (the “PNs”), each up to an aggregate principal amount of
USD30 million (the “Debt Placing”).

The extended placing period ended on 31 January 2013 and our placing
agent successfully procured 17 placees for the new CBs and the PNs. A
significant subscriber is a wholly-owned subsidiary of a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As the
conditional subscription constitutes a very substantial acquisition for the
subscriber, it is subject to the approval of the shareholders of its holding
company. The subscriber is in the process of obtaining such approval.

The acquisition agreement, the disposal agreement, the new agreements
with Business Ally, and the Mountain Sky Agreement are inter-conditional
on each other (together, the “Proposed Transactions”), whereas the
Placing Agreement is conditional upon the completion of the Proposed
Transactions. We will work diligently and focus our efforts firmly on
completing the Proposed Transactions. We hope to report positive news
of the progress of the Proposed Transactions shortly.

The restructuring of the Group will allow us to shed lagging businesses
and enter into a more stable and conducive environment. It will help the
Group engender flexibility and resources to increase its revenue streams
and also to strengthen its capital and asset base. We look forward to
ushering the Group into a new frontier: to commence operating the new
coal business in order to build a stronger and more valuable platform for
our shareholders.

I'would like to take this opportunity to thank the management and staff of
the Group for their hard work, dedication, and loyalty under such
uncertain environments. | would also like to thank all our shareholders
and business partners for their trust and confidence in the Group’s board
and management.

Mr. Tse Michael Nam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Results

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$86,147,000 (2011: approximately HK$73,497,000), which
represented an increase of approximately 17% while the gross profit
increased by 6%. The increase in turnover was mainly contributed by the
banking and finance system integration services and software solutions
segment and the coal operation segment. The increase in the turnover
from the banking and finance system integration services and software
solutions segment was mainly due to the successful tender of a significant
long-term project and an increase in the demand for automatic teller
machines (“ATM") with deposit and withdrawal capabilities. The increase
in the turnover of the coal operation segment was due to the sale of the
raw coal inventory and because the logistics business recorded a full year
of operation this year while it only commenced operation during the
second half of 2011.

The increase in gross profit was predominantly contributed by the banking
and finance system integration services and software solutions segment,
which increased due to the increase in turnover as well as the application
of stricter cost control measures during the year. As such the gross profit
margin for this segment increased marginally and it also recorded a lower
segmental l0ss as compared to last year.

In spite of the significant increase in the turnover of the coal operation
segment from a full year of operation and the sale of raw coal, the gross
profit for this segment decreased and the segmental loss for this operation
increased as compared to last year. The reasons were because of the
escalating fuel costs and higher staff costs and depreciation charges
associated with the operating of the coal trading and logistics businesses.
Further analysis of the banking and finance system integration services
and software solutions business and the coal trading and logistics
businesses can be found in the “Business Review” section of this Report.
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The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$113,732,000 as compared
to a loss of approximately HK$865,316,000 last year, which amounted to a
decrease of approximately HK$751,584,000. The loss for the year 2011
was mainly due to an impairment loss of approximately HK$819,000,000
recognized in respect of the Group’s iron mining business. For the current
year the Group’s mining businesses did not suffer any impairment losses.

As stated in the Company’s 2012 Interim Report as at 30 June 2012, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,700,000 was recognized in respect
of the gold mining rights as the fair value of the gold mining rights as at 30
June 2012 as assessed by Greater China Appraisal Limited (“Greater
China”) was lower than its carrying value. As at 31 December 2012, the
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,700,000 was reversed in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” because the fair value
of the gold mining business as valued by Greater China, exceeded the
carrying value of the gold mining business. The reason for the increase in
the fair value of the gold mining business as at 31 December 2012 as
compared to 30 June 2012, was mainly due to the increase in the prices of
gold during the second half of 2012. The increase in the prices of gold
translated into increased forecast revenue for the gold mining business
and correspondingly, an increase in the fair value of the gold mining
business.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

During the year, the Company has been diligently working towards the
simultaneous purchase of certain coal mines in Shanxi Province from City
Bloom, an independent third party; the disposal of its iron mining, coal
trading and logistics businesses to MSM, one of the major shareholders of
the Company; and the restructuring of its existing financial obligations
with its bond holder, Business Ally. On 12 June 2012, members of the
Group contemporaneously signed several agreements to facilitate the
acquisition and the disposal and subsequently, on 6 September 2012, the
Company also successfully entered into agreements with Business Ally to
restructure the terms of its convertible bonds. MSM and City Bloom also
entered into an agreement for the sale of MSM's shares and CPS to City
Bloom on 12 June 2012. Full details of the acquisition, disposal and the
restructuring, among other things, are published in the announcements of
the Company dated 8 October 2012, 29 November 2012, 14 December
2012, 28 February 2013, 13 March 2013 and 18 March 2013 and the
Company's circular dated 25 March 2013.

Furthermore, towards the end of the year, the Company entered into the
Placing Agreement to place the New CBs and the PNs each in the principal
amount of up to USD30,000,000 on a best effort basis and supplemented
by extension letters dated 31 December 2012 and 18 March 2013. The
placing agent, KCG Securities Asia Limited, will receive a placing
commission of 0.4 per cent of the aggregate principal amount of the New
CBs and the PNs successfully placed by it. The Debt Placing further
solidifies the Company’s plans for the operation of the coal mines upon
the completion of the acquisition.
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As detailed in the Company’s announcements dated 27 August 2012 and
8 October 2012 and the Company'’s 2012 Interim Report, the Directors was
notified that Mountain Sky Resources Holdings Limited (the “Claimant”) on
21 August 2012 had filed a claim (the “Claim”) in the High Court of Justice
of the British Virgin Islands. The Claim is against MSM, Ultra Asset
International Ltd. (“Ultra Asset”), the Company, and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. As it currently stands, MSM is owned as to the
majority by Ultra Asset and the Claimant is a minority shareholder. The
Company and the other defendants intend to strongly defend the Claim
and are of the view that they have valid defence against the Claim. The
Company has also obtained an expressed undertaking from Ultra Asset
and MSM, pursuant to which the Company and its subsidiaries will be
indemnified against, among others, all losses in connection with the
Claim. Even so, the Company is not able to quantify the consequential
impact (if any) of the final outcome of the Claim on the Company at this
stage.

Iron mining

The Group owns a 99.99% interest in Golden Pogada LLC (“Golden
Pogada”), which holds a mining right license for a 12.01 sg-km iron ore
mine located in south central Mongolia (the “Oyut Ovoo Mine”).

As reported in our 2011 Annual Report and 2012 Interim Report, the
mining operation at the Oyut Ovoo Mine has been stalled because of
technical problems with the production equipment and machineries.
Other obstacles have also impeded the Oyut Ovoo Mine such as a
prolonged production schedule and an inability to establish the required
scale of production. The infrastructure supporting the area around Oyut
Ovoo Mine has not been sufficiently developed and the Group intended to
build an independent loading and docking facility near the Choir station to
alleviate that need, however the construction of the docking facility has
also been stalled. The Group would have to bear logistics related costs for
transporting the iron ore products from the Oyut Ovoo Mine to Erenhot to
be sold which resulted in a shift in the cost structure and the profitability
of the iron mining operation. As at the date of this Report, the mining
operation at the Oyut Ovoo Mine is still suspended.

On 12 June 2012, the Group entered into a disposal agreement for the
disposal of the entire issued share capital of North Asia Resources Group
Limited (“NARG"), which holds the Group’s 99.99% interest in Golden
Pogada. Upon completion, the disposal will allow the Company to focus its
resources on the operation of the new coal mines.
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Gold mining

Dadizi Yuan LLC* (“Dadizi Yuan”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
holds mining and exploration licenses in respect of two alluvial gold mines
located in Khar Yamaat, Khongor and Sharin Gol Soum of Darkhan Uul
aimag, Mongolia.

As reported in our 2011 Annual Report and the 2012 Interim Report, the
gold mining at Khar Yammat site was suspended during the end of 2010
due to the severe inclement winter conditions. Political uncertainties
surrounding the Mongolian elections and the aftermath have extended the
suspension of operation during the year under review. Given the
fluctuating nature of these circumstances, the Group is re-strategizing its
operation and management will continue to monitor the situation in
Mongolia before deciding on an opportune time to re-commence the gold
mining operation.

Coal trading and logistics

The coal trading and logistics businesses of the Group are carried out by
Good Loyal Group Limited (“GLG") through its subsidiary, Global Link
Logistics LLC (“GLL") and NARG's subsidiary, NAR Gold Fox Group Limited
("NAR Gold Fox"). The logistics operation at the Gants Mod border crossing
is operated through GLL while the coal trading business at Ceke border
crossing is operated through NAR Gold Fox.

During the year in review, GLL continued to transport coal products for a
Mongolian coal mining company to the Gants Mod border crossing. The
Mongolian coal mining company has completed the construction of a
paved road from its mine to the Gants Mod border. This new road will help
increase the fleet efficiency for GLL in its future transportation of coal for
the counterparty and conceivably also decrease the rate of deterioration
of its truck fleet in future. Along with transporting coal, in August 2012 GLL
had also concluded a contract for the transporting of cement from the
Gants Mod border for a road construction company.

The onset of the wintery conditions in Mongolia during the second half of
2012 introduced a different set of issues for the company. Because of
extremely low temperatures, a different blend of fuel is required for the
operation of the trucks during the winter months. During that period, the
region in which GLL operated experienced a drastic fuel shortage. Many
logistics companies were forced to stop operating. However, GLL was able
to navigate this problem through its access to certain reliable fuel
providers.

*  For identification purpose only
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GLL's operation was running relatively smoothly in 2012 and has
generated consistent revenue for the Group throughout the year.
However, given that GLL is still a relatively new operation, more capital
investment will be required in order for this business to become profitable
and in particular, towards obtaining a steady supply of fuel given that fuel
supply is a primary and crucial factor to the success of a logistics
operation.

NAR Gold Fox started a trial run of its business model towards the end of
2011, which was subsequently aborted as the business involved a
relatively long funding cycle and substantial outlay of capital. Considering
the length of time from the point of initial investment for the purchase of
raw coal, coal washing, transportation, to the final receipt of payment
from the washed coal buyers, NAR Gold Fox decided to put this operation
on hold pending further review and strategic planning. Since the washing
process had ceased, the raw coal was sold during the year under review.

The entire issued share capital of GLG and NARG will be disposed to a
connected party pertaining to the terms and conditions of the disposal
agreement. Both GLL's and NAR Gold Fox’s businesses are still in their
early stages and would require further investments of capital. The disposal
of the coal trading and logistics businesses would allow the Company to
focus its resources on the operation of the new coal mines upon the
completion of the acquisition which are expected to contribute a more
steady revenue stream to the Group.

Banking and finance systems integration
services husinesses

The banking and finance systems integration services businesses of the
Group are carried out by its wholly-owned subsidiary TopAsia Computer
Limited and its subsidiaries (“TopAsia Group”).

In 2012, the business environment has been challenging because of
slower economic growth and high labor costs in the PRC. In spite of this,
TopAsia Group has managed to increase its total revenue for the full year
of 2012 as compared to 2011. The main drivers of growth came from
increased demand by local banks for ATM with deposit and withdrawal
capabilities and other financial equipment and services and the success of
TopAsia Group’s efforts in extending its product ranges by cooperating
with certain ATM and data storage equipment manufacturers to jointly
secure a substantial long-term project. Part of the revenue from this
project has been recognised in 2012 while the remainder will be
recognised upon completion of project during 2013.
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In the PRC, the ATM servicing industry is becoming more crowded but
TopAsia Group has been able to maintain its ATM maintenance services
revenue at a steady pace relative to last year. Despite increased price
competition in the servicing space coupled with manufacturers signing
contracts directly with bank branches, TopAsia Group was able to
marginally increase its full year gross profit margin compared to last year
through the application of stricter cost control measures on its operation
to reduce the variable costs of the group.

The PRC economy for 2013 is expected to remain challenging, as the
deficiency of capital, fluctuation in resource prices, and increase in labor
costs continue to be major issues for the service industry. In view of this,
we will continue to maintain a prudent operational strategy for the
TopAsia Group's business.

OUTLOOK

Given the circumstances surrounding the iron mining operation and the
start-up statuses of the coal trading and logistics businesses, the
Company believes that their disposal would be beneficial for the Group’s
future. The focus will shift to the coal mines to be acquired which are
expected to broaden the Group’s revenue and asset base. From this
reorganization, the Company will be able to realize more value from its
capital outlays by investing in businesses that are able to generate
steadier income streams and have better growth prospects. Furthermore,
the restructuring of the Group's financial obligation on the USD30M CB will
relief some of the Company's debt burden and the potential cash outflow
which would otherwise be required for the repayment of the USD30M CB,
as well as strengthen the Company’s capital base.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Net assets

At 31 December 2012, the Group recorded total assets of approximately
HK$649,419,000 (2011: HK$714,685,000), which were financed by total
liabilities of approximately HK$400,662,000 (2011: HK$351,273,000) and
total equity of approximately HK$248,757,000 (2011: HK$363,412,000). The
Group's net asset value as at 31 December 2012 decreased by 32% to
HK$248,757,000 as compared to approximately HK$363,412,000 as at 31
December 2011.
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Gearing

At 31 December 2012, the Group's gearing ratio, computed as the Group’s
other borrowing and convertible loan notes over the equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company was approximately 1.18 as compared to
approximately 0.69 as at 31 December 2011.

Liquidity

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$13,336,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$33,573,000). The net
cash balance as at 31 December 2012 was approximately HK$13,336,000
(2011: HK$33,573,000), as the Group does not have any bank borrowings
(2011: nil).

As stated in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the USD30M
CB had a maturity date of 13 December 2012, however, the holder has
given an undertaking to and covenanted with the Company that it will not
request for any redemption of the whole or any part of the USD30M CB on
or before 30 June 2013. The Group's net cash balance as at 31 December
2012 was approximately HK$13,336,000 or equivalent to approximately
USD1,710,000. The Group is actively engaged in the completion of the
Proposed Transactions and the Debt Placing and is confident that they will
be successfully completed. Based on the working capital forecast
prepared by the management with reference to the Group’s current and
new business plans and the Debt Placing, the Directors consider that the
Company will be able to finance its working capital requirement and fulfill
its financial obligations as and when they fall due.

Charges on assets

At 31 December 2012, 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the
entire issued shares of Green Paradise Enterprises Ltd., was pledged to
the holder of the USD30M CB.

Treasury policies

The Group generally finances it operations with internally generated
resources, from equity and/or debt financial activities. All financing
methods will be considered so long as such methods are beneficial to
shareholders as a whole. Subsidiaries in the PRC and Mongolia use
internally generated resources to finance their working capital
requirements. Bank deposits are mainly in Hong Kong dollar (“"HK$"),
Renminbi (“"RMB"), Mongolian Tugrik (“MNT") and United States dollar
("usD”).
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Contingent liabilities and capital commitments
The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31 December 2012
(2011: nil).

The Group had no capital commitments for the acquisition of plant and
machinery which were contracted but not provided for as at 31 December
2012 (2011: nil) and other commitments for an investment in a cooperation
project which were contracted but not provided for totaling HK$5,772,000
as at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$6,552,000).

Foreign exchange exposure

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group mainly earns revenue in
RMB and MNT and incurred costs in HKS$, RMB, MNT and USD. Although,
the Group currently does not have any foreign currency hedging policies,
it does not foresee any significant currency exposure in the near future.
However, any permanent or significant changes in RMB against HKS$, may
have possible impact on the Group'’s results and financial positions.

Employee and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed approximately 210 full time
staff in Mongolia, the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, working experience and the
prevailing market price. Other employee benefits include mandatory
provident fund, insurance and medical coverage, training programs and
share option scheme.

Subsequent Events

On 31 January 2013, the placing period ended and the New CBs and PNs
both in an aggregate amount of USD60 million was fully subscribed by 17
placees. As one of the placees, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for a substantial amount of the New CBs and PNs, its
subscription is subject to the approval of the shareholders of its holding
company at a special general meeting.
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On 12 March 2013, a case management conference (“CMC") was held in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") to determine the length of trial for the
Claim. At the CMC hearing, the judge adjourned the hearing to a later date
with an order for the Claimant to submit further information with regards
to, among other things, the reasons and nature of the unfair prejudicial
claim as pleaded by the Claimant. The adjourned CMC has been fixed for
hearing on 27 March 2013. The Company is of the view that this is a
positive start to the court proceedings; however, it is too early to
determine the final outcome. As advised by Walkers, the legal adviser of
the Company as to BVI law, in the unlikely event that the Claim made by
the Claimant against the Company could be proved, an injunction may be
granted by the BVI Court to restrain the Company, its subsidiary and MSM
to further proceed with the Proposed Transactions. If such injunction is
granted before completion of the Proposed Transactions, the timing for
completion of the Proposed Transactions may be adversely affected. In
such case, each of the parties to the Proposed Transactions will have to
assess the impact of the injunction and consider any revision of the terms
of the Proposed Transactions as appropriate.

On 18 March 2013, the relevant parties to the acquisition, disposal and
restructuring, entered into extension letters to mutually agree to extend
the dates of the fulfillment of the conditions precedent of their respective
agreements to 30 June 2013. Furthermore, in order to facilitate the
proposed alterations of the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds,
Business Ally gave an undertaking to and covenanted with the Company
in their extension letters, that it will not request for any redemption of the
whole or any part of the USD30M CB on or before 30 June 2013.

On 25 March 2013, the Company issued a circular to shareholders in
relation to, among others, the acquisition, the disposal, the subscription of
ordinary shares and CPS by Business Ally, the alteration of the terms of
the existing convertible bonds and the proposed placing of the New CBs
(under a specific mandate) and the PNs.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Michael Nam, aged 55, is the Chairman and the acting Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Tse has over 27 years of experience
in corporate management in the agriculture, manufacturing, mining and
M&A sectors. Mr. Tse was a registered consultant to Asian Development
Bank and has held key positions in several companies listed on the Stock
Exchange such as the executive director of Asia Coal Limited (stock code
835) and as the vice chairman and managing director of Asia Aluminum
Holdings Limited (a company previously listed on the Stock Exchange
under stock code 930). Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Biological Science from the University of California, Berkeley and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of San Francisco.

Mr. Yang Xiaoqi, aged 53, is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Yang joined the Group as an Associate Director in September 2010. Mr.
Yang is also the general director of China Railway Mongolia Investment
LLC (“China Railway Mongolia”). Mr. Yang has over 22 years' experience in
the field of corporate management, railway infrastructure and
transportation. He first entered Mongolia in 2005 and established China
Railway Mongolia in 2007. Mr. Yang holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Science and Technology
Beijing and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from
Preston University.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu Chi Chiu, aged 50, is the Deputy Chairman and the Non-
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wu has been an executive director
of China Motion Telecom International Limited (stock code 0989), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, since February 2006 and the vice
chairman and the chief executive officer of the same company since
March 2006 and is responsible for business management of that group.
Since March 2012, he has been an independent non-executive director of
Chinney Alliance Group Limited (stock code 0385), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wu holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Toronto, Canada.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, aged 51, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and the chairman of the audit and remuneration committees of
the Company. Mr. Lim is currently a director of Point Hope Pte Ltd, a
Singapore incorporated company involved in providing investment
advisory services to a private equity fund management company. Prior to
this, Mr. Lim was a director of AXIA Equity Pte Ltd, a Singapore
incorporated corporate advisory company. Between 1991 and 2005, Mr.
Lim was involved extensively in private equity investments, having
managed two private equity funds covering primarily the ASEAN region.
Mr. Lim worked in Dowell Schlumberger in the United Kingdom and Arthur
Andersen & Co, London between 1984 and 1991. Mr. Lim is also currently
an independent non-executive director of Karin Technology Holdings
Limited and Radiance Group Limited, both companies listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange. Mr. Lim graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics from the London School of Economics and Political Science in
the England. He is a chartered accountant from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. Mak Ping Leung, aged 63, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
and member of the audit and remuneration committees of the Company.
Mr. Mak is currently the managing director of Hong Kong Economic Times
Holdings Limited (“"HKET") and the Publisher of HKET. He is also the
honorary advisor to the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and a director of
Hong Kong Copyright Licensing Association Limited. Mr. Mak has over 31
years of extensive experience in the media and publishing industry. Prior
to the founding of HKET in 1987, he was the bureau chief of Wen Wei Po,
European Bureau in London, and was later promoted to the deputy
general manager of Wen Wei Po. Mr. Mak obtained his Bachelor of Arts
degree from The University of Hong Kong and had attended a journalism
programme “Journalists in Europe” in France. In 1988, he was elected as
one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBs, Jp, aged 63, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company and member of the audit and
remuneration committees. Mr. Leung is currently serving as an
independent non-executive director for two other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange namely Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code 0617) and
PYI Corporation Limited (stock code 0498) and a special consultant to the
board of directors of Sands China Limited (stock code 1928), also listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung previously served as the director of the
Office of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in Beijing until his retirement in November 2005. During his tenure with the
Government, Mr. Leung has served in various senior positions including
the Deputy Secretary for District Administration (later re-titled as Deputy
Secretary of Home Affairs), Deputy Secretary for Planning, Environment
and Lands, Private Secretary, Government House, and Secretary for
Planning Environment and Lands. Mr. Leung has extensive experience in
corporate leadership and public administration. Mr. Leung was conferred
with the Gold Bauhinia Star honour in 2004 and appointed as a Justice of
Peace in 2007, for his very distinguished services to the Hong Kong
community.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Ng Bee Ching, Jenna, is the Group’s financial controller and
company secretary. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Ms. Ng has been in the accounting
and corporate finance arena for more than 20 years. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Ng held various management positions with companies in
Singapore, Hong Kong and Australia.
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Report of the Directors
3

The Board of Directors (the "Directors”) of the Company is pleased to
present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group’s
principal business activities during the year were in the distribution of
information technology products, mining operation, trading of iron and
alluvial gold and coal trading and logistics. Details of the material activities
of the Group's principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group's principal activities during 2012.

RESULTS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 148.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group, prepared on the basis
set out in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

ARREZ(EF) EMARZERENREARF LA
MEAB((A&EENBEE-_T—=—F+=-A=+—H1
FEZEERIBBRE

FEXRK

ARFZ EELHARARN - ARERERZ T EE
BEDASWEANHES WL  BHRARDS
NBEPE SR - AEEEERBLAT . EEEH
HERRGANBREN T - ARE 2 EEEBIHE
R-B——FURETEARD -

ES

AEEEE T —F+ A=t HLFEZ¥FENR
ARBRAKENZ A ZHBIRABENESTEF 148 85
ZIEAFBWME

M ERBRE

AT AREERRBGEEMERRMEMBELERRE D
REBAREE - BERFERERZHE - WHE
WA BREEZSGA M BRREH 87 -

Annual Report 2012 « —E——FF% 19



Report of the Directors
HA AL

RESULTS E 3

2012 2010 2009 2008

—T——F —F-TF —ETHF FITN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET TR FET TET

TURNOVER G
Continuing operations SHEIREEB 86,147 73,497 31,922 51,705 109,154
Discontinuing operations BRIHE R = - - _ 569
86,147 73,497 31,922 51,705 109,723
LOSS BEFORE TAX BREAIEER
Continuing operations FEILEED (114,044) (946,740) (3,038,980) (31,478) (228,105)
Discontinuing operations B R T - - 257 (156,837) (1,271)
(114,044) (946,740) (3,038,723) (188,315) (229,376)
TAX HE (320) 81,350 28,486 79 30,053
LOSS BEFORE NON-CONTROLLING &3t 3EiZRERAIEE
INTERESTS (114,364) (865,390) (3,010,237) (188,236) (199,323)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS JEIER RS 632 74 460 2,128 1,417
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRELFEEER
SHAREHOLDERS (113,732) (865,316) (3,009,777) (186,108) (197,906)
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

AE  BERFERER

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
=B —T—% ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTTN\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHT FHT FHET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 567,343 578,548 1,400,130 4,175,616 274,583
CURRENT ASSETS REEE 82,076 136,137 316,470 266,525 217,337
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE (359,906) (310,517) (55,082) (117,320) (85,754)
NET CURRENT RE(BEEEFE
(LIABILITIES) ASSETS (277,830) (174,380) 261,388 149,205 131,583
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERRBARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 289,513 404,168 1,661,518 4,324,821 406,166
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE (40,756) (40,756) (433,803) (545,694) (71,310
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IR AER 2 (399) (430) (136,830) (2,855)
248,759 363,013 1,227,285 3,642,297 332,001
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT = K&
Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Company and of AR T RANEE Z ME M RHENERN 2 S FIEH N4
the Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated & BFEREN T 16 -
financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS &N

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons for such movements,
are set out in Notes 29 and 32, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 36(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 55, respectively.

RABBEARBBRERFAN 2 ZBHBEREZEEHRED
PBN R A MR FE29 ] 32

(E4i
RA T R A KB ERF N2 Z B 150 BB AR S B
TR L 36(b) R 5 55 A 2 iR & s H K -
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2012, the Company had no retained profits available for
cash distribution or distribution in specie. Subject to the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (the “Act”), the Company’s contributed surplus of
approximately HK$458,561,000 is distributable. The contributed surplus
and the Company’s share premium account following a reduction thereof
in compliance with the Act and the approval of Shareholders of the
Company, in the amount of approximately HK$3,939,988,000 at 31
December 2012, may be set off against the accumulated losses of the
Company. Thereafter, any balance in the share premium account of the
Company may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws of Bermuda, the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately
65% of the Group's total sales in 2012.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 62% of
the total purchases for in 2012 and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 27% of the Group’s total purchases for the
year.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or any of the substantial

shareholders of the Company (which are disclosed to the Directors) had
any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during 2012 and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tse Michael Nam (Chairman and acting Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yang Xiaogi

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Chi Chiu (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John

Mr. Mak Ping Leung

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP

In accordance with Bye-law 111(A) and the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
(the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, Mr. Yang Xiaogi and Mr. Wu Chi Chiu will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. Being eligible, all of the retiring
directors will offer themselves for re-election as Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the current Directors and of the senior
management of the Group (the “Management”) are set out on pages 16 to
18 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

S

R —FRBEAREAMEZARRESWT

HITES
BRI S (E R AT AR)
L

FUTES
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BYFHITES
Lim Yew Kong, John 5t 4
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RS GBS, P

RIBERRAAIE 1A GRS ER R (T ET
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FERPENEEBREERRBEFAS LRESE -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:

(i) Long position in the shares

Name of Director Nature of interest

Beneficial owner
A A

Mr. Tse Michael Nam

i}

\

Beneficial owner
A A

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John
Lim Yew Kong, John %4

i}

\

In addition to the above, as at 31 December 2012, certain Directors
have non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries
held for the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of
complying with the minimum company membership requirements.
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Except as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, neither the
Chief Executive Officer nor any of the Directors of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
(i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Except as disclosed above and in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any of the
Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by any of them; or was the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company'’s share options scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company on 30 May 2002 and had expired at 29 May
2012. Full particulars of the Scheme are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. On 29 May 2012, all the outstanding
share options amounting to 26,987,029 lapsed.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERERHM A TRKRH REER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT #zZEZERXE

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

)

26

Persons who have an interest or short
position which is discloseable under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
Substantial Shareholders

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2012, the
following persons (not being Directors or the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares which are required to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group:

(i) Interests in the shares and underlying shares

Name of substantial

shareholder Nature of Interest

FTERRER

Mr. Yu Tsung Chin, William Interest of controlled
(Note 1)

TRaERE(ET)

corporation
A E R

Mr. Zhang Wei (Note 1) Interest of controlled

RAESR A (BsE1) corporation
A A E

MSM Beneficial owner

IR B8R EmEB A

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ b5 & RIERBRAR

(i)

No. of shares

BRARBRZ RIPE RIS XV AR
F2RITHBEBZERIKAEZA
IREFERR

BEEHRM R-T——F+-A=+—8" T
FIAL (IR R B EZSHATHARE) AR 17 3048
RGO - HEESE AERIREE S KEEED
EXVEBE 2 ] 35 EMRSCA M AR 1 A) J Bt 22 BT 4%
BERIKR  HEEIEEEBNAERR
MEAEREAEEEMKERAIZRERE X
R Z AR ANEE 10% S A 2 s

() RERHREBEKRGER

Approximate

and/or percentage of issued

underlying share capital as at

shares held  Position 31 December 2012

ER=F2—=F

FrisiRA R, TZA=t+—-HZ

HEROEE ERITRABNA DL

618,615,909  Long 51.77%
e

1,861,017,472 Short 155.76%
B

618,615,909 Long 51.77%
FE

1,861,017,472 Short 155.76%
KRB

0 Long 0%
e

1,861,017,472  Short 155.76%
KRB



Name of substantial
shareholder

EERREE

Ultra Asset International Ltd.
(Note 1)

Ultra Asset International Ltd.
(F5E1)

Extra Right Group Limited
(Note 1)

Extra Right Group Limited
(M)

Business Ally

CCB International Asset
Management Ltd. (Note 2)

BREREEBTEBR AT
(B=E2)

CCB International Asset
Management (Cayman) Ltd.
(Note 2)

CCB International Asset
Management (Cayman) Ltd.
(BF=E2)

CCB International (Holdings)
Limited (Note 2)

ERBIR (12AR) BRR A A
(BE&E2)

CCB Financial Holdings Limited
(Note 2)

ZITERERER AR (FiEE2)

Report of the Directors
H A

No. of shares

and/or
underlying
Nature of Interest shares held
FERDR, =
HHERAEE
Beneficial owner 618,615,909
EnEEA
Interest of controlled 0
corporation
RiEEE R 1,861,017,472
Interest of controlled 618,615,909
corporation
Ry EE RS 1,861,017,472
Beneficial owner 2,722,128,583
EmEB A
Interest of controlled 2,722,128,583
corporation

R L

Interest of controlled 2,722,128,583
corporation
SR EE RS

Interest of controlled 2,722,128,583
corporation
YA E S

Interest of controlled 2,722,128,583
corporation
SR E RS

Approximate

percentage of issued

share capital as at

Position 31 December 2012
HR=F—=F
+=A=t+—HA2
ERTREABNES L
Long 51.77%
S
Long 0%
TR
Short 155.76%
Y=Y
Long 51.77%
TR
Short 155.76%
R
Long 227.83%
TR
Long 227.83%
S=)
Long 227.83%
HE
Long 227.83%
TR
Long 227.83%
HRE
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Name of substantial
shareholder

FERREHE

CCB International Group
Holdings Limited (Note 2)

BITRIR S EZER AR A A
(M$5E2)

China Construction Bank
Corporation (Note 2)

PEIERIRITIRGO AR QA
(M3 2)

Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(Note 2)

PRESIREGRETLRA
(Mt 2)

Get Best Management Ltd.

Mr. Lau Siu Hung Ricky (Note 3)

2 Dot A (BEE3) corporation
AR A E
Notes:
1. MSM is beneficially owned as to 81.19% by Ultra Asset

International Ltd. ("UAI"). By virtue of the SFO, UAI is deemed

Report of the Directors
HA AL

Nature of Interest

Interest of controlled
corporation

SEEE RS

Interest of controlled
corporation
B ER

Interest of controlled
corporation
SR EE

Beneficial Owner
EmEB A

Interest of controlled

to be interested in those shares and CPS held by MSM.

28

UAI beneficially owns 180,547,273 shares and 385,500,400 CPS
which are convertible into 438,068,636 shares. UAI is
beneficially owned as to 60% by Extra Right Group Limited
("ERG") and as to 40% by Mr. Zhang Wei (“Mr. Zhang"). ERG is
in turn, wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Tsung Chin,
William (“Mr. Yu"). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yu, Mr. Zhang and
ERG were deemed to be interested in those shares and CPS
held by MSM and UAI.

NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ b5 & RIERBRAR

No. of shares
and/or
underlying
shares held

FEROK, =
HER G EE

2,722,128,583

2,722,128,583

2,722,128,583

227,272,726

227,272,726

N

2y

Approximate
percentage of issued
share capital as at

Position 31 December 2012

HR=Z—=F

+=—B=+—-H=Z

ERTRAGNE DL

Long 227.83%
e

Long 227.83%
HE

Long 227.83%
SS=)

Long 19.02%
e

Long 19.02%
HE

1 X 82 J& A Ultra Asset International Ltd.
(TUAIL) B 25 B 81.19% 125 - 1RIBFE 5
REAE G - VAR AR ILREERIA Z
&1 R AT R B Se IR P A A s ©

UAIE 25 A 180,547,273 B B& 19 K2 7] 85 4
#438,068,636 1% % 15 2 385,500,400 % AT
(B S A% o UAID Bl Extra Right Group
Limited ([ERG]) RRBEE ([REELEDE
% A 60% [ 40% %% © ERG Bl 1 TR &
SE(TFEEDZER=HRE - BIEZH
REAEIEG] - T4 « REERERGIR A
PRI REER R VAR 2 R 17 & AT ERE
SR IEE S o



Report of the Directors
3

As at 31 December 2012, MSM beneficially owns 155,350,000
shares and 1,500,987,376 CPS which are convertible into
1,705,667,472 shares. Pursuant to the terms of the second
supplemental agreement dated 6 January 2012 entered into
between the Company and the holder of USD30M CB, MSM
has charged all shares and CPS registered in its name to the
holder of the USD30M CB.

As at 31 December 2012, Business Ally beneficially owns
convertible loan notes, shares and CPS which are convertible
into an aggregate of 2,722,128,584 shares. Business Ally is
wholly and beneficially owned by CCB International Asset
Management Limited (“CCB-IAM"). By virtue of the SFO, CCB-
IAM was deemed to be interested in those shares held by
Business Ally.

CCB-IAM is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by CCB
International (Holdings) Limited (“CCB-IH"). By virtue of the
SFO, CCB-IH was deemed to be interested in those shares
which CCB-IAM was interested.

CCB-IH is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by CCB
Financial Holdings Limited (“CCB-FH"). By virtue of the SFO,
CCB-FH was deemed to be interested in those shares which
CCB-IH was interested.

CCB-FH is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by CCB
International Group Holdings Limited (“CCB-IGH"). By virtue of
the SFO, CCB-IGH was deemed to be interested in those
shares which CCB-FH was interested.

CCB-IGH is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by China
Construction Bank Corporation (“CC Bank”). By virtue of the
SFO, CC Bank was deemed to be interested in those shares
which CCB-IGH was interested.

CC Bank is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Central
Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin"). By virtue of the SFO,
Central Huijin was deemed to be interested in those shares
which CC Bank was interested.

Get Best Management Ltd. (“GBM") beneficially owns
56,818,181 shares and 150,000,000 CPS which are convertible
into 170,454,545 shares. GBM is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Lau Siu Hung Ricky (“Mr. Lau”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Lau was deemed to be interested in those CPS held by GBM.

m_§7—¢+:ﬂz+fH~Mi%ﬁ
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(ii) Interests in shares of associated corporations of the
Company

Name of subsidiary
0o PN g

Name of entity
ERER

BMC Software (China) Ltd. BMC Software (HK) Ltd.

[ represents a long position in the securities

Except as disclosed above and so far as the Directors were aware, as at
31 December 2012, no other party had any interest or short position in the
shares, the underlying shares or debentures of the Company which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company under provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to herein.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

During the year, the Executive Directors, Mr. Tse Michael Nam and Mr.
Yang Xiaogi, received emoluments of approximately HK$3,558,000 and
HK$936,000, respectively. The Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr.
Lim Yew Kong, John, Mr. Mak Ping Leung and Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen
Joseph GBs, Jp earned fees amounting to HK$150,000 each. The Non-
Executive Director, Mr. Wu Chi Chiu received HK$270,000.

The basis for determining the Directors’ emoluments (including bonus
payments) remained unchanged during the year.

On 29 March 2012, Mr. Wu Chi Chiu, the Deputy Chairman and Non-
Executive Director of the Company, took up an additional appointment as
an independent non-executive director of Chinney Alliance Group Limited
(stock code 0385). Mr. Wu is also an executive director, the vice chairman
and the chief executive officer of China Motion Telecom International
Limited (stock code 0989), as previously reported.
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On 23 January 2013, Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, Jp, the
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company, took up an
additional appointment as an independent non-executive director of Quali-
Smart Holdings Limited (stock code 1348). Mr. Leung is also an
independent non-executive director of Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock
code 0617) and PYI Corporation Limited (stock code 0498) and a special
consultant to the board of directors of Sands China Limited (stock code
1928), as previously reported.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, there were no other changes to
the Directors’ information that are required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company had
complied with the code provisions and recommended best practices of
the Code except for certain deviations. Details of corporate governance
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 had been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, who
will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment as auditor
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
12 June 1999 with clear written terms of reference. For the year ended 31
December 2012 and as at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee comprised three members, all of whom were Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The composition of the Audit Committee as at
the date of this annual report was Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, (Chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Mak Ping Leung and Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen
Joseph GBS, Jp. Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee is a qualified chartered accountant from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. None of the members is a
partner or former partner of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the Company’s
external auditor.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review the annual and
interim results and the accompanying auditor’s reports, the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Company, and the financial and
internal control systems of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
3

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012, including the
disclaimer of opinion in the auditor’s report thereon, and had submitted
its views to the Board of Directors.

Similar to last two years, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
accepted the independent auditor’s report with a disclaimer of opinion as
it was specifically due to the going concern issue related to the current
financial obligations of the Company for the USD30M CB. In all other
respects, the independent auditor’s opinion was that the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Mr. Tse Michael Nam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and Management of the Company
are highly committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
and transparency in fulfilling their corporate responsibility and
accountability to the Company’s shareholders. The Board and
Management recognize that the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices is an essential factor in achieving financial success
and enhancing shareholder value.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(@) Corporate Governance Practices
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has
complied with the code provisions and recommended best
practices of the Code except for certain deviations as set out below.
The Board will continue to review and monitor the Company’s
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the
Code.

The Company had also engaged SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
to carry out a review of the Company’s compliance with the Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012 and also to report on
whether any non-compliance with the Code was fully disclosed and
explained in this Corporate Governance Report. SHINEWING Risk
Services Limited’s review had uncovered certain gaps between the
current practices of the Company and the Code, which are fully
disclosed and explained in Section (d), (g) and (j) of this Corporate
Governance Report.

(b) Securities Transactions
The Model Code has been adopted as the code for Directors’
securities transactions for the Company. After having made specific
enquiry of all the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he
had complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less
exacting than the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of
their dealing in the Company’s shares and established written
guidelines on inside dealings in relation to the Company and the
securities transaction of the Company with reference to SFO
Chapter 571 Division 4.
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(c) Board of Directors
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Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Board is
composed of six members comprising two Executive Directors
(including the Chairman), one non-Executive Director who is also
the Deputy Chairman and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors ("INEDs"). The biographical details of the current members
of the Board are set out on pages 16 to 18 of the Annual Report.
The Company has also maintained on its website and on the
website of the Stock Exchange, an updated list of its Directors and
the management identifying their roles and functions including
whether they are INEDs.

Save for being a Director, each Director does not have any other
relationship with each other, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules).

The Board is tasked with the responsibility of directing and
supervising the Company’s businesses and affairs and promoting
its success and growth. The Board is collectively responsible for the
management and operations of the Company and is responsible for
directing and supervising the overall management of the Company
with regards to the implementation and maintenance of internal
control procedures and ensuring compliance with relevant statutory
requirements, the Listing Rules and other rules and regulations and
performing the corporate governance duties. The day to day
management of the Company has been delegated by the Board to
the Management of the Company.

The Board meets regularly. During the year, four regular Board

meetings were held. Notices for regular Board meetings were given
to all Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings.
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Prior to each Board meeting (for regular meetings, at least 3 days
prior), the Chairman, with the support of the company secretary,
ensures that every Director has been properly briefed on issues and
provided with the agenda and accompanying Board papers
containing adequate information provided by the management to
enable them to make informed decisions at the meeting. Every
member of the Board has an opportunity to propose matters in the
agenda for discussion at each Board meeting.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of committees are taken
by the company secretary and maintained at the Company’s
premises. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings record in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board or committee
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting views expressed. Drafts and final versions of
minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments within a
reasonable time after the Board meetings are held. Every member
of the Board is entitled to inspect Board papers and related
materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services of
the company secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed. Where queries are
raised by any of the Directors, responses are provided as promptly
and fully as possible. The Directors may also send a request to or
inform the company secretary in relation to seeking independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of
the Company. So far, there has not been any case where a
substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the board has
determined to be material.
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The attendance of each of the Directors at the annual general BEERNFRARTZRRAFAS EEEE
meeting, Board meetings and meetings of the Audit and % ERZEegR kI EeeRLEXRN
Remuneration Committees held during the year is set out below: N

No. of meetings attended/held
HE BITERRE

Annual General Audit Remuneration
Directors Meeting Committee Committee
2= BRBFAE EREE] FMESS

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Tse Michael Nam (Note 1) 11 7/7 3/3
A EE A e ()

Mr. Yang Xiaogi 01 3/7

e e &

Non-Executive Director

FHTES
Mr. Wu Chi Chiu (Note 2) 0N 7/7

B8 (M 2)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYEHITES

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John 11 7/7 4/4 3/3
Lim Yew Kong, John %4

Mr. Mak Ping Leung 11 7/7 4/4 3/3
ERR K%

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP 11 7/7 4/4 3/3

R L GBS, P

Notes: B

1. Mr. Tse Michael Nam was re-designated as the Chairman of the Board 1. HEFEREERAEREFEER H_E——F
with effect from 15 March 2011. He is also the acting Chief Executive ZATHRABRER - BWINARDRRIBITEARE -
Officer of the Company.

2. Mr. Wu Chi Chiu was appointed as Deputy Chairman on 15 March 2. B EER_ZE——F=A+HABREZT A
2011. He is also a Non-Executive Director of the Company. EFE o BINBRARERITES ©
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Seven scheduled Board meetings were held during the year of
which four were regular board meetings including two for the
approval of the interim and annual results of the Company and to
review the effectiveness of the financial and internal control
systems of the Company. The rest of the scheduled meetings were
held for, among other matters, the approval of the very substantial
acquisition, the very substantial disposal and the placing of New
CBs and PNs.

The Company had maintained an appropriate level of insurance
cover in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers of
the Company and its subsidiaries throughout the year ended 31
December 2012.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company in a timely manner of
any change, the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant commitments. All
such changes during the year and up to the date of this report,
have been disclosed in the Report of the Directors section of this
report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Since 15 March 2011, Mr. Tse Michael Nam, has been the acting
Chief Executive Officer and also the Chairman of the Company. This
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code which
stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, the Board considers that in view of the
current operational needs of the Group, its ongoing stability and the
on-going transaction, it is beneficial and efficient to maintain this
leadership structure.

During the year, Mr. Tse Michael Nam fulfilled his responsibilities as
the Chairman of the Board, including chairing the board meetings,
ensuring that the Board operates effectively and discharges its
responsibilities, ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures by anchoring with the Listing Rules (even though
these practices and procedures have not been formally
documented in the Company’s policies), facilitating effective
contribution of Directors, ensuring effective communications with
shareholders and ensuring constructive relations between
executive and Non-Executive Directors. During the year, the
Chairman has also chaired several meetings with the independent
non-executive directors and the non-executive director, without the
presence of the other executive director.

(d)
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(e) Non-Executive Directors

(f)

38

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company had
been in compliance with Rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules by having at all times three INEDs on its Board, one who has
the appropriate professional accounting qualifications and the
number of INEDs represented at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the INEDs and the non-Executive Director was appointed
for an initial term of not more than two years from the date of his
appointment. Upon the expiry of the initial term, the appointment
may be renewed for another term of not more than two years. In
accordance with the Bye-laws, every Director of the Board
(including the INEDs) is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by the Company’s Shareholders at least once every three
years.

Each of the INEDs met the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered each of them
to be so. The Company had received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation as to his independence.

The Non-Executive Director and the INEDs have been participating
in board meetings, taking the lead where potential conflicts of
interests arise, serving on the audit and remuneration committees,
scrutinizing the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, monitoring performance reporting
and making a positive contribution to the development of the
Group's strategy and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments and giving the board and committees in
which they serve, the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation. Each Director has given sufficient time and
attention to the Company's affairs during the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Ccommittee”) was established in June 2005 with specific written
terms of reference detailing the Remuneration Committee’s role
and authority. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are published on the Company’s website as well as the
Stock Exchange's website.
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The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating and
making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility to
determine the specific remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and senior Management and to make recommendations
to the Board for the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors.

In fulfilling its functions, the Remuneration Committee takes into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, respective time commitment, and responsibilities of the
Directors and senior management and whether the remuneration
packages are competitively attractive to retain the Executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
members may consult the Chairman of the Board about their
proposals relating to the remuneration of the Executive Directors
and have access to sufficient resources including professional
advice if considered necessary. No director can, however, approve
his own remuneration.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 and as at the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee comprised four members,
three of whom were INEDs and one Executive Director who was
also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee up to 1 March
2012. The members of the Remuneration Committee as at the date
of this report are Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John (an INED and the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee since 1 March 2012), Mr.
Tse Michael Nam (an Executive Director), Mr. Mak Ping Leung (an
INED) and Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, Jp (an INED).

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once each year and it
met on 31 December 2012 to review and approve the remuneration
package of the other Directors and the senior management (which
had remained unchanged from the previous year) and other related
matters including the Board evaluation.

Nomination Committee

The Company did not establish a nomination committee which
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.5 of the Code which
stipulates that the issuer should establish a nomination committee.
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The Board considers that the appointment and removal of directors
are the collective decision of the Board. Where vacancies on the
Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process by
making references to the skill, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidate, including the independence status in the case of an
independent non-executive director, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. The
procedures for shareholders to elect a director has been published
in the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites. During the
year, there were no new appointments to the Board.

Auditor's Remuneration

During the year, the Company reappointed SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited as the auditor of the Company. The auditor's remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2012 was as follows:

Nature of work
I{EMHE

Audit services
FEZRS
Non-audit services
EEZIRES

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee was established in June 1999 with
clear written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are published on the Company's website as well
as the Stock Exchange’s website.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditors, approving the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditors, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditors' independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards, monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-year report and
accounting policies, as well as overseeing the Company'’s financial
controls, internal control systems and risk management systems.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 and as at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee was comprised of three members, all
of whom were INEDS. The composition of the Audit Committee as
at the date of this report was Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, (the
Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Mak Ping Leung and Mr.
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, Jp. Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, the
Chairman of the Audit Committee is a qualified chartered
accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. None of the members is a partner or former partner of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the Company'’s external auditor.

The Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditor of the
Company, the Directors, the Company's qualified accountant, and
other members of Management. The Audit Committee has met with
the Company’s auditor twice during the year ended 31 December
2012 with regards to the review of the Company’s financial reports
and accounts.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year ended 31
December 2012 to review the annual and interim results and the
accompanying auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Company, and to review the financial and
internal control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 including the disclaimer of opinion in the auditor’s report
thereon and has submitted its views to the Board.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility of
the Directors to ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the management has
provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board to
enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before it for approval including the monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
However, the management did not provide monthly updates to the
Directors for the months of July and August due to the preparation
of the interim financial statements and the intensive work involved
in completing the proposed acquisition and disposal transaction.
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A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance, an
explanation of the basis on which the issuer generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the
Company's objectives have been prepared and included in the
Chairman Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
sections of this Annual Report.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited, on their reporting responsibilities in respect of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out on pages
48 and 50.

The Directors confirm that, except for the issues as explained under
the basis of presentation section of the consolidated financial
statements in Note 1 to the consolidate financial statements, they
are not aware of any other material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Directors’ Training and Professional
Development

Every Director knows that he should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh his knowledge
and skills to ensure that his contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant. The Company is responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training for the Directors. Accordingly, during
the year, the Company has made available training and
development programmes for the Directors including: (i) seminars
of “Financial Planning and Control for Directors” and “Financial
Reporting Standard Update for 2011/2012"; (i) “"SGX-SID Listed
Company Director (LCD) Programme”; and (i) an on-going training
and professional development programme for the Directors.
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During the year, all the Directors were provided with monthly
commentary on the Group's business, operations, and financial
matters (except for the months of July and August) as well as
regular updates on applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
The Company had also provided the Directors with the materials
and information update including the Directors’ obligations as
required under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing
Rules. In addition, individual Directors have also participated in
other courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online aids
or reading relevant materials. All the Directors had provided the
company secretary with their training records for the year under
review.

Directors

Ex

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Tse Michael Nam
HEAF R E

Mr. Yang Xiaoqi
T e &

Non-Executive Director
FHITES

Mr. Wu Chi Chiu
LS &

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYkHTES

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John

Lim Yew Kong, John 5t 4

Mr. Mak Ping Leung

ERR &

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, /P
RS GBS, IP

A attending internal briefing sessions/reading materials in relation to
corporate governance and regulatory updates.

B: attending seminars/courses/conferences to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills
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Type of trainings
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Company Secretary

Ms. Jenna Ng Bee Ching, a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, was appointed by
the Board as the Group's financial controller and company secretary
of the Company on 24 March 2011 and she reports to the Chairman.
During the year, she has completed over 30 hours of relevant
professional training.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for ensuring a sound
and effective internal control system is maintained within the
Company and its subsidiaries so as to safeguard the Group’s assets
and its shareholders’ investments. The Directors conduct annual
reviews of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls as
well as the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting and financial reporting functions, and their
training programmes and budget.

Pursuant to provision C.2.6 of the Code, the Board reviewed the
need for an internal audit function and considered it appropriate to
outsource the function. Accordingly, SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited was engaged to carry out an internal audit review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company and
certain of its subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December
2012. The review covered all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Company. SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
completed its internal control audit review and reported its findings
to the Board. Although their review did uncover certain gaps
between best practices and the Company’s current practices, there
were no significant areas of concern which may affect
Shareholders.

The Board considers the internal control systems of the Company
effective and the resources, qualifications and experience of the
accounting and financial reporting functions, adequate for the
period in review.
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(n) communications with Shareholders and (n) EHBRRKREE ZEB
Investors
The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with EXCAFHEARARRRFBER - BERLRE

the Company’s shareholders. A shareholders’ communication
policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation to
shareholders’ communications, with the objectives of ensuring a
transparent and timely communication with shareholders via
various means, has been established and published on the
Company's website. And it will be reviewed annually after the
annual general meetings. The annual general meetings of the
Company and other general meetings are valuable forums for the
Board to communicate directly with the shareholders and to answer
questions shareholders may raise. Another key element of effective
communication with shareholders and investors is the prompt and
timely dissemination of information in relation to the Group. The
Company has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner in 2012 as required by the Listing Rules.

Separate resolutions are proposed by the chairman at general
meetings for each substantial issue. The detailed procedures of
conducting a poll are explained to shareholders at the
commencement of the annual general meeting (“AGM"), to ensure
that shareholders are familiar with such procedures.

The Company'’s last AGM was held on Thursday, 17 May 2012 at
11:00 a.m. at Units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189
Des Voeux Central, Hong Kong. Notice of the last AGM were sent
out on 13 April 2012, i.e. there were 34 clear business days before
the AGM. All the resolutions proposed at that meeting were
approved by the shareholders of the Company by poll. Details of
the poll results are available on the Company’s website. Mr. Michael
Tse, the Chairman of the Board chaired the last AGM and also
invited Mr. Lim Yew Kong John, the chairman of both the audit and
remuneration committees to attend. All the Directors, except Mr.
Yang Xiaogi and Mr. Wu Chi Chiu, attended the last AGM. The
auditors and the legal advisors of the Company were also available
during the AGM to answer questions from the shareholders.

The next AGM will be held at Units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Central, Hong Kong on Friday, 16 May
2013 at 11:00 a.m.
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The market capitalisation of the Company as at 31 December 2012
was HK$346,499,470.1 (issued share capital: 1,194,825,759 shares
at closing market price: HK$0.29 per share). The public float was
approximately 54.68% as at 31 December 2012.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws during the financial year 2012. A copy of
the latest consolidated version of the Memorandum of Association
and Bye-laws is posted on the Company's and the Stock Exchange’s
websites.

Shareholders’ Rights — Convening of
General Meetings

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
general meeting of the Company. Shareholders holding an
aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of
the Company may send a written request to the Board of the
Company to request for the convening of a general meeting. The
written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at
the registered office of the Company. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the
shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Shareholders’ Rights — Making Proposals
at General Meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company: (a) any number of members
representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting
rights of the Company on the date of the requisition; or (b) not less
than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
shareholders concerned, together with a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposal must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge at the principal place of business of the
Company at Units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189
Des Voeux Central, Hong Kong, the necessary documents as
mentioned in the “Procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a director of the Company” which has already been
published in the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's website.

Shareholders’ Rights — Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company secretary
whose contact details are as follows:

North Asia Resources Holdings Limited

units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2889 6289

Fax: (852) 2897 9137

r
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TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of North
Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 148, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Except as described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
However, because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of
opinion paragraph, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION:
FUNDAMENTAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO
GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately HK$277,830,000 as
at 31 December 2012 and the Group incurred a loss attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$113,732,000 for the year ended 31
December 2012. Although, as explained in Note 38(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 18
March 2013, the holder of the convertible loan notes with principal
amount of USD30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$234,000,000),
which was originally matured on 13 December 2012 (the “Convertible
Loan Notes”), had provided an undertaking to and covenanted with the
Company that it will not request for any redemption of the whole or any
part of the Convertible Loan Notes on or before 30 June 2013, the
convertible loan notes holder may request the Company to redeem the
Convertible Loan Notes and the respective unpaid accrued interest after
30 June 2013 if the proposed transactions as detailed in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 October 2012 and circular dated 25 March 2013
are not completed successfully. These conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

As explained in the basis of preparation set out in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared by the directors on a going concern basis, the validity
of which is dependent on the Group’s ability to have adequate cash flows
to maintain its business. Due to the uncertainty of the Group's ability to
maintain adequate future cash flows, we were unable to ascertain
whether the assumptions made by the directors of the Company in
preparing the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis
are proper and appropriate.
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Should the Group be not able to continue its business as a going concern,
adjustments would be necessary to reclassify all non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities, write down the value of assets to
their recoverable amounts and to provide for further liabilities which may
arise. The consolidated financial statements have not incorporated any of
these adjustments. However, the uncertainty surrounding the Group's
future cash flows raises significant doubt about the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. We consider that appropriate disclosures
have been made in the consolidated financial statements concerning this
situation, but we are unable to obtain adequate evidence concerning the
Group's ability to meet any financial obligations as and when they fall due
and we consider that this fundamental uncertainty relating to going
concern basis is so extreme that we have disclaimed our opinion.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion. Accordingly we do not express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P05589

Hong Kong
27 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

2011

—T—F

HK$'000
T

Turnover B 8 86,147 73,497
Cost of sales and services rendered SHE RIRHARTSHI KA (67,460) (62,025)
Gross profit FEAH 18,687 11,472
Other operating income Efth 48 = iz 8 1,681 775
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (7,652) (3,630)
Administrative expenses 1T E A (51,929) (63,802)
Other operating expenses HihgEEH (1,267) (1,270)
Change in fair value of derivative ARRERZEITETALD

component of convertible loan notes ZATFEE 28 4,469 37,561
Loss on redemption of convertible FEL R EREE 2 BB

loan notes 28 - 6,679)
Loss on amendment of terms of EREE e TSN

convertible loan notes 5t 28 (21,118) (24,166)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B RERENIEREHMEE E

exploration and evaluation assets ZIBMEEE 19 - (7,645)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B RERIRIEE 2 R EEE

mining rights 18 - (819,000)
Finance costs BE A 9 (56,915) (70,356)
Loss before taxation PR RIS TE 10 (114,044) (946,740)
Income tax FTSHi 11 (320) 81,350
Loss for the year FEEHE (114,364) (865,390)
Attributable to: AT AL FEAS

Oowners of the Company ViN/NETE 2 =N (113,732) (865,316)

Non-controlling interests IR i A (632) (74)

(114,364) (865,390)

Loss per share TR EE 13

Basic and diluted (HK cents) FLA K #4558 (B (9.88) (86.62)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2011

—T—F

HK$'000
TR

Loss for the year FEEE (114,364) (865,390)
Other comprehensive (expenses) income FEHEMEERWKE (FAX) -

for the year, net of tax MR
Exchange differences on translation of BMEGINETS 2 EH =5

foreign operations (291) 1,044
Total comprehensive loss for the year, FEXHAEIBATE  HRHRIE

net of tax (114,655) (864,346)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: ITATEGEZEESBEE :

Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZ 2= D/N (114,023) (864,272)

Non-controlling interests Sl (632) 74)

(114,655) (864,346)
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As at 31 December 202 R=ZE——F+=-A=+—H

2011
—T—F

HK$'000
T

Non-current assets FEMENE E
Plant and equipment B B iR A 16 103,041 112,561
Finance lease receivables A& 70 & e R 17 - 1,685
Mining rights PRIERE 18 441,214 441,214
Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —REM B ARG & 23,088 23,088
Goodwill e 20 - _
567,343 578,548
Current assets mENE E
Inventories FE 21 7,188 23,022
Amounts due from non-controlling FEURIEIE R e 45 8 A SKIA
interest holders 22 273 273
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H At fE U FOE 23 61,092 76,178
Finance lease receivables L& S eI R 17 - 2,826
Amount due from a director JEW — 2 EEHKIA 24 187 265
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 25 13,336 33,573
82,076 136,137
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H e /1A 26 58,824 50,705
Amount due to a non-controlling FES — R IEE RS IFE A
interest holder 22 306 306
Amount due to a director B —REEFHA 24 138 -
Other borrowing HMEE 27 - 8,000
Derivative component of convertible AMRBRERERZTETERBS
loan notes 28 - 1,775
Liabilities component of convertible AR ERER 2 AEHD
loan notes 28 293,925 242,828
Income tax liabilities FristHia & 6,713 6,903
359,906 310,517
Net current liabilities mEE EFE (277,830) (174,380)
289,513 404,168
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B MR DL

As at 31 December 202 A —ZFE——F+=-A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-——F T ——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Capital and reserves BN R i#E
Share capital A% A 29 11,948 11,380
Convertible preference shares A] SRR ST AR 30 20,365 20,865
Reserves f# 216,446 330,768
Equity attributable to owners of RAEIHER AELER
the Company 248,759 363,013
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR RS (2) 399
Total equity s AARE 248,757 363,412
Non-current liability IEmBEE
Deferred tax liability ELEHIBEE 31 40,756 40,756
289,513 404,168
The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 148 were approved #51E 148 B 2 G A MBREN —_E—=F=A=-++

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2013 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Tse Michael Nam
Director
EF
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Mr. Yang Xiaoqi
BERIELE
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B 1 B ik 2 W)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARTREAEL
Convertible Exchange  Convertible Share  Statutory Non-
Share Share  preference Contributed translation bonds options surplus Special Accumulated controlling
capital  premium shares surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests
TER EERH

BA  ROEE TERELR  MABR ENREGE E5GR RREEE  ORBR  RRARE  RHER &t FERES
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

Tin Fin Fin Fin Fin T#n T#n Tn Tin Tin Fin Fin
(Note] (Noteii) (Note i)
(HraEi) (Bski) (

At1 January 2011 R-E——£-f-H 8,514 3,940,400 23,387 49 749 29631 29545 850 074 B29720) 1,227,285 430 1,221,715
Loss for the year 3 - - - - - - - - - (865316) (865,316) 7 B53%0)
Other comprehensiveincome £ R 2 FlE

for the year - - - - 1,044 - - - - - 1,044 - 1,044

Total compreniensive loss FR2AFREE

for the year - - - - 1,004 - - - - (865,316) (864,272) (74) (864,346)
Issug of shares upon e BER L

conversion of convertible ARG

preference shares 2866 (344) (2522 - - - - - - - - : :

Derecogniton of equity BRI RRER

componentofconvertble g2 E%H5

loan notes - - - - - (29,631) - - - 29631 - - -
Capital contribution from FERERETTE

nor-controling nterests - - - - - - = = - - - 8 8

At31December2011and  R-E-—£+-f

1 January 2012 —Ak

“T-—F-f-H 11380 39400% 20,865 4911 8,537 = 29505 850 8074 (4115409 363013 39 363412
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - - - (113732)  (113,732) (632)  (114,364)
Other comprenensive EEEHAARY
expenses for the year - - - = (291) - = = = - (291 = (291)

Total comprehensive loss ER2AFRLEE

for the year - - - - (291) - - - - (11373) (114023 (632)  (114,655)
Issue of shares upon REBTERERR

conversion of convertible AR

preference shares 568 (68) (500) - - - - - . - . : °

Acquisition of additional hE-EHEAREN
equity interestin asubsidiary  RAER (533)

(Note 33) o o = = = = = = (231) - (231) 231 -
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-Z%
+=A=1-H 11,948 3,939,988 20365 419,111 8,246 - 29,545 850 47803 (429131) 248759 2 28757
Notes: Bzt
0} Contributed surplus represents the reduction of the Company’s issued share (i)  SIA B EAIEA A 5 2 317 I AN B 40 2 AR AN 12 = 485 1 el 2>
capital upon cancellation of paid up share capital, and the deemed MNERE B ARBEFEREARAEERLE
contribution from equity holder arisen from the waiver of promissory notes in B EHESERmMKRIETE -
previous years.

(ii) Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China have appropriated 10% of the (i)  F&E A R MBI B A 71#8 10% &% F B EEE RSB A
profit to the statutory surplus reserve which is required to be retained in the BEE BETEARENANBATIEREEERE -
accounts of the subsidiaries for specific purposes.

(i) Special reserves comprises of reserves arising from transactions with the  (iii)  $F B #E BB EIEIE IR 2 S 4+ R -
non-controlling interests.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

w Bl R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2011

—F——%F

HK$°000

TR

OPERATING ACTIVITIES K
Loss before taxation FRE A E1E (114,044) (946,740)
Adjustments for: TS S EEL A
Change in fair value of derivative AMRERZEITETR
component of convertible loan notes B2 AFEE (4,469) (37,561)
Depreciation e 13,784 6,365
Finance costs BbE A AN 56,915 70,356
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BRERBERTEEE
exploration and evaluation assets ZREEE = 7,645
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B R RERE 2 R E k18
mining rights - 819,000
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BEERE Z EWEIE
trade receivables Z R EEE 1,140 1,270
Interest income FEUA (558) (255)
Loss on amendment of terms of BT AR E RER G
convertible loan notes ZE8 21,118 24,166
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HERE RREHELZEER 838 78
Loss on redemption of convertible loan notes fEE TR E R E 2 BB = 6,679
Reversal of impairment loss recognised B RIE R E S ENEIE
in respect of trade receivables ZIRMEEIE (353) -
Write off of other receivables Hif S EL At e M R IE 127 -
Operating cash flows before RetEEZE @ EFAIKE
movements in working capital REmME (25,502) (48,997)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (H50) 15,834 (6,122)
Decrease (increase) in trade and E 5 & H e GRIE
other receivables A (g ) 14,172 (17,331)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E MR FIEE N 1,099 2,672
Cash from (used in) operations KEEBAE (TR R e 5,603 (69,778)
Income tax paid BHFEE (510) (417)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ #S & #5718 (FT ) B& 28 5,093 (70,195)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
AR EmER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

2011

—T—F

HK$'000
T

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE

Acquisition of plant and equipment BEHE L&E (3,940) (25,242)

Proceeds from disposal of plant and HERE KRS IE

equipment 2,429 94

Repayment from customers under finance lease ~ RERMEHEERTF 2 BX 958 1,214

Interest received B UFI B 531 195

Repayment from (advance to) a director —REFER(M—BEFRER) 78 ©)]

Acquisition of finance lease assets WiEmEHEEE - (5,665)

Advance to non-controlling interest holders R R E AR - (273)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING BRETEFS(FTA)BELSFHE

ACTIVITIES 56 (29,680)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE

Interest paid BEFLE (17,222) (33,306)

Other borrowing (repaid) raised (BER)EEHMEER (8,000) 8,000

Advance from a director —HBEEFEN 138 -

Repayment of convertible loan notes BEIRREREE - (101,400)

Capital contribution from non-controlling JEIEREREAEE

interests = 43

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE AR FE (25,084) (126,663)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERRLSZEBYRL FHE (19,935) (226,538)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUzRERBASEEY

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 33,573 259,086
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES INEEREE HE (302) 1,025
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZBESRASEEY

END OF THE YEAR, represented by P BIRTTHEBRIRE

bank balances and cash 13,336 33,573
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 1 WA 205 W Bk

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—F——F+-_A=1+—RHIFE

58

GENERAL

North Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
section to the Annual Report.

Other than those subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") whose functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB"),
functional currency of the Company and the subsidiaries
incorporated in Mongolia is the United States dollar (“USD"). The
functional currency of the other subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollar
("HKS").

As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of the
Company consider that it is appropriate to present the consolidated
financial statements in HKS.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During
the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) were
principally involved in the distribution of information technology
products, geological survey, exploration and development of iron,
gold and other mineral deposits (mining operation), trading of iron
ore and alluvial gold and coal trading and logistics.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company have given consideration to the future liquidity of the
Group.

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$277,830,000 as at 31 December 2012 and incurred a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$113,732,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012. Although,
as explained in Note 38(ii) to the consolidated financial statements,
the holder of the convertible loan notes with principal amount of
USD30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$234,000,000) (the
“2010 Convertible Loan Notes A") which had a maturity date of 13
December 2012, had given an undertaking to and covenanted with
the Company that it will not request for any redemption of the
whole or any part of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A on or
before 30 June 2013. The holder may request the Company to
redeem the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A and the respective
accrued interest after 30 June 2013 if the Proposed Transactions (as
defined below) are not completed successfully. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.
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REZE——F+-A=+—0 AEEEERY
BEFFEA277,8300008 L HHE-T——4F
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¥ 2% B E 38(1i) P B At - 78 £ 58 /3 30,000,000 < 7T
(P70 49234,000,0008 ) ER =B ——F+=
HAH+T=REHZzA#EERER(AE_ZT—F
FABMBRERRR D FHE AR AR R F#H HARE R
RIVRAE TERE—=FA=THAEX
B2 PAR T - FAHRRERFE
HEARRZEHR S (EFER T RETK
FEANAR-ZE—=FRNA=THRERARF
BOAR_Z-ZFABRERFERLABES
ME - WEBERBTFEEEATHAERE - 7]
REHAEEBER R EEELB IR NER
BEARE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 -2~ —F+ - A=+—HILFE

GENERAL (continued)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

As explained in the Company’s announcement dated 8 October
2012 and circular dated 25 March 2013, the Group entered into
several contracts to acquire new coal mining business and to
dispose of certain of its existing businesses, and for the alteration
of certain terms of its convertible loan notes (the “Proposed
Transactions”).

On 18 December 2012, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with a placing agent (the
"Placing Agent"”) for the placing of convertible loan notes (the “New
CBs") and promissory notes (the “PNs”) each up to an aggregate
principal amount of USD30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$234,000,000) (the “Debt Placing”) during the period from the
date of the Placing Agreement and up to 31 December 2012 (or
such later date as the parties may agree) (the “Placing Period”). The
Debt Placing is subject to the successful completion of the
Proposed Transactions and other conditions as stated in the Placing
Agreement. Details of the Debt Placing are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 18 December 2012.

As explained in the Company’s announcement dated 31 December
2012, the Company and the Placing Agent mutually agreed to
extend the Placing Period from 31 December 2012 to 31 January
2013. The Placing Agent successfully procured placees to subscribe
for the New CBs and the PNs at the close of the Placing Period as
detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 1 February 2013
and Note 38(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

The management is currently actively engaged in the completion of
the Proposed Transactions and the Debt Placing. Based on a cash
flow forecast prepared by the management with reference to the
Group's current and new business plans and financing plans of the
Group, the directors of the Company consider that the Group will
be able to finance its future working capital and to fulfill its financial
obligations as and when they fall due.

— &R @
GENBERRC2IEE @)

BARRIZZE—Z—F+AN\NBHNAHR-ZE—=
FZA-TRBEMBERAMML  NEBEEFTET
R WEFERAREEREEE TRAE
% WERT AR ERERNE T HRR([ER
251 -

RZZB——F+=-A+/ R AREEEERE
(TEERE DRI S ([ Eha]) - REC
@I AR E T ——F+-_A=+—H (G
AHNEDTHENRZBH) AN (REHRDES
HREERER(HTRERES ) RAREE
(TEAEREE]) - 5846 K58 30,000,000 7T
(488 7049 234,000,000 8 7T) ([EHEE]) - &
fo SRR B R 5 A KB E 1538 P 2 b 54 52
Bi& - TAHEE - ERERENFHIFRRNARFR
“E——F+ZAT/\BOAMH -

BARRRZE—Z—F+_A=1+—HKAMHAR
it - AR REREREXRREHEE HH=
T+t -_A=t—RHERE-ZT—=F—A#
=+—H - BEREK A S B & RATR &
I AR AR RES RARRE - BAFIEH
RZZT—=F=A—BORMNURGE M ERE
P 5 38(ii) ©

EREEREBNZREZR I REBRE - EF
REBEEREL2RALSERE RMEB EREE
REZBHSRERA  ARTAEZR/AEET
BNRREEES RENDBHBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—F——F+-_A=1+—RHIFE

1. GENERAL (continued)
Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that it is still
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012 on a going concern basis, the
validity of which depends on the successful completion of the
Proposed Transactions and the Debt Placing.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected
in the consolidated financial statements.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA").

Amendments to Hong Kong  Deferred Tax: Recovery of

Accounting Standards Underlying Asset
("HKAS") 12
Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

— Transfers of Financial Assets

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position for the current and prior years and/or the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+-_A=1+—ALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvement to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle’
Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government Loans’
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities’
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition
Guidance’

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities?

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

i

’T & Py 1

H
2l

=2
o
g

&

=4

) -

BEYBRS

R 55T
BEHBH
F152185]
BBHT RS A
B8]
BB BRE LA
L Gy

DH

3

\\>¢

\\>¢]j

REERET 2B
BEYHREE

£105%  MRK
12572 E7T

BEYHREE

£10 12% K&

TS E R
1164

ZJSEI*E_?;EE?%T% AT I B AR B 18R A R FT
E uT&gﬁiF% °©

P

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC)*~Interpretation
(“Int") 20

L2 HK(IFRIC) represents the Hong Kong (International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee).

Financial Instruments?
Consolidated Financial Statements’
Joint Arrangement’
Disclosures of Interests in

Other Entities’
Fair Value Measurement’
Employee Benefits’

Separate Financial Statements’

Investments in Associate and Joint
Ventures'

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income*

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

g R
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BB B EERIZE 195,
(ZZ——%{&3])
BB B FTERIE 275
(Z2——F{&3])
SRR 2855
(ZZ——%{&3])
EB R ERIE 157
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Aok 1 WA 205 W Wik

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—F——F+-_A=1+—RHIFE

62

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-
2011 Cycle issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Amendments to HKFRSs include the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements, the amendments to HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment and the amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes in accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period (third statement of financial
position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity is
required to present a third statement of financial position only when
the retrospective application, restatement or reclassification has a
material effect on the information in the third statement of financial
position and that related notes are not required to accompany the
third statement of financial position.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-by
equipment and servicing equipment should be classified as
property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and as inventory
otherwise. The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on distributions
to holders of an equity instrument and transaction costs of an
equity transaction should be accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the amendments to HKAS 32 will have no effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+-_A=1+—ALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
and amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures
— Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and
“simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose information
about rights of offset and related arrangements (such as collateral
posting requirements) for financial instruments under an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within
those annual periods. The disclosures should also be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods. However, the
amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective application
required.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regards to offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities in the future.

FERFTR] R R IBFT B R M B | E
ZR([HRMBHREZED D@

BRI EAENRRERNEER
EHEE2HE | BT RERME
BERUF7HRHE — SREE
REmAEzHHE | 28T

R e ERERF L EFTEERTEME
SRAEHHRENEBREE - ﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ%‘
R [ B AT AR EATIT Z S 85 |
B BE(E | BB

p=1l3
N
m 53 \%

BRI REENBETRZIETERARKEH
RARTEFRAEBRAXRARL 2R TA
i iHrE RARR 2 (PIEIRBER) AR -

BEUBRELNE7RZBIRN B —=F—
H—B 2 BRRABZFRERZEFFREZPHE
Mo AR LLBRHIMMNERN ARG PRE - A
- BEGFEERF BTN T —MEFE—
RA—Bs 2 &RABZFREIREN  XREWE
A e

ARREZRARATEG T EAERFEREL
M mEERNE7 R ZETEEBRRAELE
HeMEERSRAGHHENESIE -

Annual Report 2012 « —ZE——F %3 63



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 1 WA 205 W Wik

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—F——F+-_A=1+—RHIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

— All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

—  With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities” credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS
9 may have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of
the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities but it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

New and revised standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these fives standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong (Standing Interpretations Committee)
("HK(SIC)")-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10,
there is only one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition,
HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10
to deal with complex scenarios.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

New and revised standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures (continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. HKFRS 11
deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. HK (SIC)-Int 13 Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers will
be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS
11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to
the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three
types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint
ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities
under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the
application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted provided
that all of these standards are applied at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of

these five standards do not have a significant impact on amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception to
consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity, except where
the subsidiaries provide services that relate to the investment
entity’s investment activities. Under the amendments to HKFRS 10,
an investment entity is required to measure its interests in
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be met.
Specifically, an entity is required to:

—  obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with professional investment management
Services;

—  commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

— measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 have been
made to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment
entities.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with early
application permitted. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the amendments will have no effect on the Group
as the Company is not an investment entity.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which
other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13
are more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the
three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The directors
anticipate that the application of the new standard may affect
certain amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement. Under
the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’ and an ‘income statement’ is renamed as
a ‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain
the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1
require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into
two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on
items of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on
the same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or
net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of other
comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in future accounting periods.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine applies to waste removal costs that are incurred in surface
mining activity during the production phase of the mine
(“production stripping costs”). Under the interpretation, the costs
from this waste removal activity (“stripping”) which provide
improved access to ore is recognised as a non-current asset
(“stripping activity asset”) when certain criteria are met, whereas
the costs of normal on-going operational stripping activities are
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 2 Inventories. The stripping
activity asset is accounted for as an addition to, or as an
enhancement of, an existing asset and classified as tangible or
intangible according to the nature of the existing asset of which it
forms part.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013. Specific transitional provisions are provided to
entities that apply HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 for the first time. However, HK
(IFRIC)-Int 20 must be applied to production stripping costs incurred
on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented. The
directors anticipate that the application of HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 will have
effect on the recognition of stripping activity assets in the future. It
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations
will have no material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income
to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Change in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill had been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified impairment
loss.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment other than construction in progress less their
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress includes plant and equipment in the
course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate categories of plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Mining rights

Mining rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below). Amortisation for mining rights is recognised on the units of
production method based on the total proven and probable
reserves of the mine or contractual period from the date of
commencement of commercial production which approximates the
date from which they are available for use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Exploration and evaluation assets
include expenditure incurred for topographical and geological
surveys, exploratory drilling, sampling, trenching activities in
relation to commercial and technical feasibility studies, expenditure
incurred to secure further mineralisation in existing ore bodies and
to expand the capacity of a mine. Expenditure incurred prior to
acquiring legal rights to explore an area is written off as incurred.
When it can be reasonably ascertained that a mining property is
capable of commercial production, exploration and evaluation costs
are transferred to mining rights and are amortised based on the
accounting policy as stated in “Mining rights” above. If any project
is abandoned during the evaluation stage, the total expenditure
thereon will be written off.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise cash at banks and on hand. For the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of bank balances and cash as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, financial lease receivables, amounts
due from non-controlling interest holders, amount due from a
director and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

3 significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period from 30 to 180 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or l0ss.
When a trade and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form as integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amount
due to a non-controlling interest holder, amount due to a director
and other borrowing are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notes issued by the Group that contain liability,
conversion option and derivative (which is not closely related to
host liability component) components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of
financial liabilities and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument. At the date of
issue, both the liability and derivative components are measured at
fair value.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of
the issue of the convertible loan notes and the fair values assigned
to the liability component and derivative component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert the convertible loan
notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
loan notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The equity component, representing the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible bonds
reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible bonds reserve will be released to the accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible loan notes (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
embedded derivative is charged to profit or loss immediately.

Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are classified as equity if it is non-
redeemable and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends on
convertible preference shares classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.

Embedded derivatives

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method for its mining and coal products and first-in-first out method
for its information technology products. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling prices for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives
other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives
other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment 10ss is recognised as an expense
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately
in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

3 the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retained neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economics benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

(ii)  Service income
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Equity settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to be
held in share options reserve.

Share options granted to business associates

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured at the
fair values of the services received. The fair values of the services
received are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the counterparties
render services, unless the services qualify for recognition as
assets.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or 10ss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and
deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operation are translated into presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange translation
reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the PRC and Mongolian government retirement benefit
schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC and Mongolia and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimation (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern basis

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the
outcome of the Proposed Transactions and the Debt Placing. Details
are explained in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Impairment of mining rights

Under the full cost method of accounting for mining rights, such
costs are capitalised by reference to appropriate cost pools, and
are assessed for impairment when circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may exceed its recoverable value. This assessment
involves judgement as to (i) the likely future commerciality of the
asset and when such commerciality should be determined; and (ii)
future revenues and costs pertaining to the asset in question, and
the discount rate to be applied to such revenues and costs for the
purpose of deriving a recoverable value. While conducting an
impairment review of its assets, the Group makes certain
judgements in making assumptions about the future iron and gold
prices, reserves and future development and production costs.
Changes in these estimates may result in significant changes to the
consolidated income statement. As at 31 December 2012, the
carrying amount of mining right is HK$441,214,000, net of
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses of
HK$1,112,714,000 (2011: HK$441,214,000, net of accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses of HK$1,112,714,000).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2012, the carrying amount of trade receivable is HK$39,854,000, net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$13,068,000 (2011: carrying
amount of HK$24,594,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$12,281,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Mine reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s mine reserves are inherently
imprecise and represent only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering criteria
that have to be met before estimated mine reserves can be
designated as “proven” and “probable”. Proven and probable mine
reserve estimates are updated on regular intervals taking into
account recent production and technical information about each
mine. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and assumptions are
required about a range of geological, technical and economic
factors, including quantities, grades, production techniques,
recovery rates, production costs, transport costs, commodity
demand and commodity prices. In addition, as prices and cost
levels change from year to year, the estimate of proven and
probable mine reserves also changes. This change is considered a
change in estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected on a
prospective basis in related amortisation rates and impairment of
mining right.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates,
these estimates are used in determining depreciation expenses and
impairment losses. The capitalised cost of mining rights is
depreciated over the estimated useful lives. The useful lives are
reviewed annually in accordance with the production plans of the
Group and the proven and probable reserves of the mines.

Estimation of current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters are different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determinations are made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Fair value of derivative component of convertible loan
notes

The directors of the Company use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not
quoted in an active market. Valuation technigues commonly used
by market practitioners are applied. For derivative component of
the convertible loan notes, assumptions are made based on quoted
market rates adjusted for specific features of the instrument.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which included
convertible loan notes disclosed in Note 28, other borrowing
disclosed in Note 27, cash and cash equivalents, amount due to a
non-controlling interest holder disclosed in Note 22, amount due to
a director disclosed in Note 24 and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
convertible preference shares and reserves. The directors of the
Company review the capital structure periodically. As a part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and

ERMENRE(BERS

6. ERITH
(@) €MIBEZSE

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T

cash equivalents) RIREEEY) 57,687 97,953
Financial liabilities SHas
Amortised cost R EHR AN 335,661 283,662
FVTPL derivative BAFEFABRZITETA = 1,775

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include finance
lease receivables, amounts due from non-controlling interest
holders, trade and other receivables, amount due from a
director, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
convertible loan notes, other borrowing, amount due to a
non-controlling interest holder and amount due to a director.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(b) MBREBREEBEREE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EMT A
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MERMEEEEREE@®
and policies (continued)

Market risk 35 [ B

currency risk B mEE

Certain financial assets are denominated in currencies other ETeREEUNERARS B EEEI
than the functional currency of the respective group SN EHEEHE ©

companies.

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end TRERMEERREHRMAMEAERE
of the reporting period to currency risk arising from A EEUIINERETEZ RSB
transactions or recognised assets denominated in a currency REEMEEZEEER

other than the functional currency of the entity to which they

relate.

As at 31 December 2012 As at 31 December 2011
“E-—-f+=ZA=+—H —Z——F+=-HA=+—H
Mongolian
Tugrik
(“MNT")
HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 MNT'000
T4 F5&
FHET EEER FrET Bl E
Assets BE 3,205 744,948 4,029 1,519,742
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency NEE B R EINE SRR o A B
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign BEEEIINERR  WHRERERZSEY
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant SR EARINE RS o

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITR®
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEAKREEEZEREE @
and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) HiEEE ()
currency risk (continued) BHmEpE (48)
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of HK$ and

MNT.

AEBTERHBETLRGERERER
Bz

TRAVNIAEEHEAEERARININEE
SRR INE FHE R B2 B 5% 2 R E © B
RESWERERBINETEZEKIER
IAPER BN 5% ABEHNFLER 2BE - T
3 IE B fin 78 7T 3 AE B B MK FHE 5% R A
EERD o METHEEEBRESS
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a RIEHZEBEEEKRASSE2ARTE
decrease in loss after tax where HK$ strengthen 5% against MATSERBEE -

the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of HK$ against the

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities against the relevant foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign

relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss after tax, and the balances below would

be negative.
HK$ MNT
BT EhERER
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F —E——F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FaxT FAT FaxT FHET
Impact on loss for the year — #EEER Y 22 (160) (207) (211) (475)
Interest rate risk Vi)

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate other borrowing (see Note 27 for details) and

convertible loan notes (see Note 28 for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in

relation to variable-rate bank balances.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITR®
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEAKREEEZEREE @
and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) iz (48)
Interest rate risk (continued) FilEE b (48)
Sensitivity analysis BURRE DT

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
balances, the analysis is prepared assuming the bank
balances at the end of each reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. The basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

50 basis points have been used for variable rate bank
balances.

For variable-rate bank balances, if the interest rates had
been 50 basis points (2011: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss after
tax and accumulated losses would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$67,000 (2011: HK$168,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts owing to the Group,
resulting in a loss to the Group. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in the event that the counterparties fail to perform
their obligations at end of the financial year in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group has no significant credit risks as it has policies in
place to ensure that sales of products and services are made
to customers with appropriate credit history. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group only
transacts with entities with good repayment history.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 -2~ —F+ - A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EMIHw®
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEAKREEEZEREE @
and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERkE (&

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk by
customer, with exposure spreading over a number of
counterparties and customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC and Mongolia with exposure
spread over a number of customers, which accounted for all
trade receivables for both years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$277,830,000. The directors of the Company have given
careful consideration on the measures currently undertaken
in respect of the Group's liquidity position. As detailed in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company believe that the Company will be able to
operate as a going concern.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivatives financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.

HREFPME  AEBEUBEMERERE
ERERE - BBROMBRTREFIRER

HwEASMME  NEBEERREES
FRPBEREEZETE  HEHE-T
——FRZF——F+ZRA=1+—HIM
BAFEEHE HEBGRIEREE -

nBELZEERRER  RRREFH
HAEBREEFIARBRTREETR
ZIRAT °

HREE & R

HRERRBESRRE  AEEERKE
FERERRRARNAKERBE RS
ERSFEEWKF  RERERSRER
BEE -

R=ZF—=—F+=—A=+—8 AE£ERK
B) & &% 5 /5 277,830,000/8 7T © NAFE
EEFAR B AR EEREE SN
FRENAFE b o TRAR A BTSSR P = 1 Fraat -
RNRFESRARARREIFELE -

TRZWEE RPN AEEETES B
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EMT A
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MERMEEEEREE@®
and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRER (&)
Liquidity risk tables BB RS &

More than
More than 2 years
Within 1 year but but less Total Carrying

1 year or less than than undiscounted amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows 31 December
i

+=A

—FR5 —ENE MEAL RER Sr=[
EER BRMER BREFR RERELE ZERHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL FHT FHL TEL

2012 “E——F
Non-derivative financial liabilities 4 ¢ RE &
Trade and other payables B 5 REMIEMNE 41,292 - - 41,292 41,292
Amount due to a non-controlling EN—REERER
interest holder BAATE 306 - - 306 306
Amount due to a director EN—ZESHE 138 - - 138 138
Convertible loan notes HRRERZR 296,175 - - 296,175 293,925
337,911 - - 337,911 335,661
2011 25
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 ¢m&E®E
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTE 32,528 = = 32,528 32,528
Amount due to a non-controlling EN—RIEERER
interest holder FBATE 306 - - 306 306
Other borrowing HifEE 8,340 - - 8,340 8,000
Convertible loan notes TRRERR 267,369 - - 267,369 242,828
308,543 - - 308,543 283,662
As explained in Note 28, the convertible loan note holder has AR EE28 Pl - PRI EREE B A
demanded for repayment of the convertible loan notes B ERBBERER AT RRERER -

according to the terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 -2~ —F+ - A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of current financial assets and current financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost approximate their fair values due to their
immediate or short-term maturities.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions.

The directors of the Company also consider that the fair value of
the long-term portion of financial assets and financial liabilities
approximates to their carrying amount as they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derivative component of convertible loan notes

The fair value of the derivative component of convertible loan notes
is determined by the inputs to binomial option pricing model
including spot price, risk free rate, expected option period and
expected volatility. Please refer to Note 28 for the details of the
inputs.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

There were no transfers among level 1, 2 and 3 in the current and
prior years.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the only financial instrument
measured at fair value was the derivative component of convertible
loan notes which belongs to level 2 financial instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 - ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

98

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segments, based on information reported to
the Board (being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM")) for
the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment
are as follows:

Banking and finance — Provision of systems integration,
systems integration software development, software
services and software solution engineering, maintenance
solutions and professional outsourcing
services for the banking and
finance, telecommunications and

public sector clients

Mining operation — Geological survey, exploration and
development of iron, gold and
other mineral deposits
(mining operation), and trading
of iron ore and alluvial gold

Coal operation — Provision of coal trading and
logistics services

The management of the Group monitors the operating results of its
business units separately for the purposes of making decisions on
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on the operating profit or loss
which in certain respects, as explained in the table below, is
measured differently from the operating profit or loss in the
consolidated income statement. The Company'’s financing (including
finance costs and finance revenue) and income taxes are managed
on a group basis and are not allocated to the operating segments.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments, the CODM also reviews
the segment assets and segment liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. PHER =
Segments revenues and results DEWMARFEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenues and results by TREFIZ] 23] REE DB T2 ANERBEA
reportable and operating segments. ET K

Banking and finance
systems integration
services and software
solutions Mining operation Coal operation
BIREREALER
BEARBHRRFR FRER RRER it
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
S9--f “B—% -®--F "% -8-°F -T—-& —8_F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEx FEL TEr FEL TEx FEL T
For the year ended BE+-A=1-8H
31 December I
TURNOVER EEE
Sales to external customers NBEE{EL 2 HE 63,771 53138 = 15,931 22,376 4,428 86,147 73497
RESULTS B+
Segment l0ss NEEE (131) (2,282) (18,595) (857,221) (2,436) (2,298) (21,162) (861,801)
Unallocated income AABBA 5,000 37,659
Unallocated expenses RAEZ (40,967)  (52,242)
Finance costs RARA (56,915)  (70,35)
Loss before taxation BRRAIEE (114,044)  (946,740)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment loss represents the loss from each segment without

allocation of central administrative expenses, directors’ and chief
executive’'s emoluments, change in fair value of derivative
component of convertible loan notes, loss on redemption of

convertible loan notes, loss on amendment of terms of convertible
loan notes, interest income and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

A 2HEEED A2 Gt BOR B 3R AN &
Bt BRRER - DBBERESDMEEZE
B MRS ERRITHEAS  EFRTHAEE
e TMRERRBEZTETARLS AFEE
B BOABREERRIECERE BT ABERE
RERBRIRKZER - MBRARBEKA « 11T
HRERSERKRBTHRAEZELERAREREZ
srEAA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. PHER =
Segments assets and liabilities PHWEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by TXAEAZRREEDHBAMZIAEEAEE R
reportable and operating segments. BE-
Segment assets PEHEE

2011

—E——F

HK$°000
T

Banking and finance systems integration services 817 & £ b R K RIS

and software solutions AR BRR T &R 45,219 31,620
Mining operation PR TS 567,257 613,994
Coal operation B R T 15,547 31,191
Total segment assets DEEEETE 628,023 676,805
Unallocated AAHEC 21,396 37,880
Consolidated assets IREAE 649,419 714,685
segment liabilities FHBEE

2011

—F——%F

HK$'000
THET

Banking and finance systems integration services 81T R &Rl R4 K R

and software solutions AR BR{4 AR T 3R 41,220 41,342
Mining operation PR 1% 2,136 1,858
Coal operation RS 994 134
Total segment liabilities DEEEREE 44,350 43,334
Unallocated RO 356,312 307,939
Consolidated liabilities REBE 400,662 351,273
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+-_A=1+—ALFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. 7EHER &
Segments assets and liabilities (continued) 2 ﬁBﬁE&EF(ﬁE
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and HREEDHERRAERRDEBELEEIR

allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than — KREBGEERERFEARIE  BR—%
amounts due from non-controlling interest holders, amount EEFE - RITEHEASUARZEZR
due from a director, bank balances and cash, and assets WmoMERERZEEIN FMEEEHAD
used jointly by reportable segments. [l R

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than — KEMEER- B —RIEERES %ﬁ)\
other borrowing, amount due to a non-controlling interest IE - B —REERE - URRERE
holder, amount due to a director, derivative component of BRITERS  JHEREREENEEI
convertible loan notes, liabilities component of convertible D FEHAR BEEREABRZER
loan notes, income tax liabilities, deferred tax liability and ERHEERFAEZ BB FTEAEY
liabilities for which reportable segments are jointly liable. AREAZWMHHE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. ABER @
Other segment information HihnBER

Banking and finance systems
integration services and
software solutions Mining operation Coal operation Unallocated Consolidated
RIREBAGEARE

DVES TS REEY Rk KAR
2012 20M 2012 2012 2012 212
Z§-f T—F R e S5 e S5 5 b St 3
HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 i HKS$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS$'000
Tin B TiEn TEn i Tin BT T

For the year ended 31 December ~ HZt=A=t-HLEE
Amounts included inthe measureof  iEAHE RSN PEER
segment losses or segmentassets: A ZEE:

Depreciation Vit 166 339 9,655 4,860 2882 61 1,081 1,105 13,784 6,365
Addtion of non-current assets (Note) ~ FEFERIAE (M) 29 27 780 %40 6491 4347 = 3 7,520 41023
mpairment loss recognised BRARRMEL

in respect of trade receivables HEEE 1,140 1210 - - - - - - 1,140 1270
Write off of other receivables WAt R - = 121 = - = - = 127 =

(Gain) loss on dlisposalof plant and HERERIBELL
equipment (ki) BB 8) (17) 846 108 - = - (13 838 78

Impairment loss recognised n respect of  ERBEEREEEL
exploration and evaluation assets HEFE - - - 7,605 - - - - - 7,645

Impairment loss recognised in respect of  ERRIREEZ HESE
mining rights - = - 819,000 - = - = - 819,000

Reversal of impaiment loss recognised ~ BEZERE flzUE
in respect of trade receivables JHBEE (353) - - - - - - = (353) -

Amounts regularly provided toCODM BRI FEBELIA%S
but not included in the meastre of ERHESIER

segment losses: KRBITALEE :
Interest income HEMA (176) (118) (305) @) (76) 73 (1) (17) (558) (255)
Interest expenses SR - = - - - - 56,915 7035 56,915 7035
Income tax expenses (credt) FaRisiL (55) 173 510 2 (81,860) 145 - - - 320 (81,350)
Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments. fifsk - FERBEETEESHBIA -

102 NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ dtZi&ERERBRADE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B o 05 R ik

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Mongolia.

The Group's revenue from external customers is presented based
on the location of the operation. Information about the Group's
non-current assets is presented based on the geographical
locations of the assets.

Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC

BE
2012 2011

—®--f “F——F “%-=F
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000

DEE R (@
& E R
AEFLEBRRNES  FEREE

REBRBIMES 2 BMAREEMI 2T -
AAKBESERBEEZ B AR AR BB EE
wEAEZ7

Mongolia Consolidated

HE R E B &8

2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

“§—F Z§-2F “F—F Z§-2f “F—F

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TEéxr TRz  TAT  TEx  TAR

THT FET
Segment revenue AEBA
Revenue from external REIMBEP 2
customers WA = -

53,138 10,000 20,359 86,147 73,497

Non-current assets (Note) — JERE&E (Fiz) 482 1,563

843 566,146 574457 = 567,343 576,863

Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments.

M : ERBDEETRESRTA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. PHER =
Revenue from major products and services FTEE@RBREZWA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major AT AAEREFE EEmRREZWADHT :

products and services:

2012 2011
—T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Sale of automatic teller machines HEBEES 43,358 31,864
Sale of coal SHEE K 12,375 -
Sale of mining products HEREE R - 15,931
Provision of logistics services R AR 10,000 4,428
Rendering of computer technology services 1 T BRI AR 75 20,414 21,274
86,147 73,497
Information about major customer EBXTEREFZER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing HASERBTFEAEE10%A L2 EFERD
over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as follows: WAIATR :
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Customer A’ BEEA 13,761 -
Customer B2 EFEB2 12,375 -
Customer C? BFEC3 - 15,931
1 Revenue from banking and finance systems integration services and 1 BITREMAREL RIS AREKIERATRD
software solutions WA
2 Revenue from coal operation 2 BREBBA
@ Revenue from mining operation 3 PRIBEGIWA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

8. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8. #X¥FRHMEEWE
INCOME

Turnover represents invoiced value of goods sold and services EERIEHEE M IR AR (R AT4s T 9740 K&
rendered, net of discounts allowed and sales taxes where HED (WER)) 2B RE - XEEERZBALLR
applicable. Revenues recognised during the year are as follows: ™

2011

—F——%F

HK$'000
T

Turnover =
Sale of goods HEEm 55,733 47,795
Rendering of services RELAR T 30,414 25,702
86,147 73,497
Other operating income HAphgs & e
Interest income F B WA 531 195
Reversal of impairment loss recognised B OB R E SR WIE
in respect of trade receivables 2R EEE 353 -
Finance lease interest income CRIFAEF B MA 27 60
Sundry income IR A 321 9
Government grant (Note) BB & (M eE) 449 511
1,681 775
Note: Pursuant to the notices issued by the relevant government authorities, Btz : RBAABEBAKAZ L 2B AARETH
certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company were entitled to enjoy MEARZ A RESHREAR KRG 2ER) - &
subsidies for provision of specialised information technology services. SEBREEMANE ZIGMH-

There is no further condition that the Group is required to fulfill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. WMERAK
2012 2011
—T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT T
Interest expenses on borrowings wholly repayable 7B R F RNEHEE ~
within five years: BEZFERY
— effective interest expense on convertible — ABRREREERZ
loan notes ERFERXZ 56,073 74,864
— other borrowings — HMEE 842 41
Total borrowing costs EEK AN B35 56,915 74,905
Less: amounts capitalised W BNz &5 = (4,549)
56,915 70,356
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December HE-_Z——F+-_A=T—HLEFENEREL
2011 arose on the general borrowing pool were calculated by BERARE —REE  REREFEFE2651%
applying a capitalisation rate of 26.51% per annum to expenditure FTAGEREERSE -

on qualifying assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

10. BRBLATIES 18

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

2012 2011
—E-—_—F = ——%E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after MRERTEIEE MR :
charging:
Auditor’s remuneration SRR BN 1,652 1,123
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 47,889 48,103
Total depreciation e 13,784 11,274
Less: depreciation capitalised as inventories B BRATEEZIE = (4,909)
Depreciation charged to the consolidated income AR W R EXINBR 2T E
Statement 13,784 6,365
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERTBEEMS
(Note 15) (PBF7E15) 5,228 4,705
Exchange loss V& 5 518 1,069 381
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade BEHERE S EWRIEZ
receivables A EE 1,140 1,270
Write off of other receivables 88 EAth B U R IE 127 -
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HERE MEEEL 2 EIE 838 78
Payments under operating leases in respect of B S E ERIE
— land and buildings — T REF 4,303 4,877
— plant and machinery — B K&k = 1,188
Staff costs (excluding directors’ and chief ETRAR(TERREEER
executive's emoluments) (Note 14) TRARE S ) (M5 14) 21,629 23,585
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX 11. FiEH

2012 2011
—T——fF

HK$'000
FERT

HK$'000
TET

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT") FRMSERFE ([ REMER]

— current — ZNHf 69 359

— under-provision in previous years —BTFERETR 105 151
Mongolian Economic Entity Income Tax S BEREER

(the “EEIT") (MEEEBAEE])

— current — ZNHA 111 27

— under-provision in previous years —BEFERETL 35 40

320 577

Deferred tax (Note 31) R TE (F13E31) - (81,927)
Income tax expenses (credit) Frisfisz i () 320 (81,350)

(iif)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any
income tax in Bermuda and the BVI.

No provisions for Hong Kong Profits Tax have been made for
subsidiaries established in Hong Kong as these subsidiaries
did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax during both years.

Profits of the subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject
to PRC EIT.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries was 25% for both years.

Profits of the subsidiaries established in Mongolia are subject
to Mongolian EEIT.

Under the Law of Mongolia on EEIT (the “EEIT Law"), the tax
rate of the Mongolian subsidiaries was 10% for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX (continued) 1. &R @
The income tax expenses (credit) for the year can be reconciled to FRMEHAS (KE) BRE RaER ZBRFHATE
the loss before taxation per the consolidated income statement as BEERNT :

12.

follows:

2012 2011
—E——1F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Loss before taxation FRBERIE 18 (114,044) (946,740)
Tax credit at rates applicable to loss in the BB AEREREARE
jurisdictions concerned FTEZHIEES (18,107) (100,826)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BARTBMAZ RIS L (811) (6,197)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for P F A 2 RIS E
tax purpose 18,973 25,339
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible temporary — AREER 2 BB EE & 7 051
differences not recognised EREREI G E 418 143
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised — EhFR @A R BRI IER B (293) =
Under-provision in previous years BAEFERETR 140 191
Income tax expenses (credit) for the year FRATEHEH (ER) 320 (81,350)

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during both years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011, nor has any dividend been proposed

since the end of the reporting period.

12. RE

TMERZIRBEEMAE -

BE-_Z——fk-_ZT—F+-_A=+—HL

9 8] € 2 37 4 2R SR BRALS, > B 3RS HR AR

Annual Report 2012 « —E——&%3% 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 1 WA 205 W Wik

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable

to the owners of the Company for the year is based on the following

13. BREE

REZARRRER ARG ERERNREEEBIR
PN S S

data:

2012 2011
—T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FAET

Loss &1

Loss for the year attributable to the owners RAEHEE AEEFEEER

of the Company (113,732) (865,316)

Number of shares g4
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RUGtESREREIEZ
for the purpose of basic loss per share B AR AnfE o AR B 1,150,737,334 999,018,150

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the
conversion of the convertible loan notes and the conversion of
convertible preference shares since their exercise would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the outstanding share options since the exercise price
of the share options was higher than the average market price for

shares for the two years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

14. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' 14. EI A (A EBREERITHAE

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS)

2M<)

2011

—F——%F

HK$'000
T

Wages and salaries TERS® 20,015 21,474
Retirement benefit schemes contribution RURENFTEIE R 1,614 2,111
21,629 23,585

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate the MPF Scheme which are
available to qualified employees. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the subsidiaries in independently
administered funds. Monthly contributions made by the subsidiaries
are calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated under the relevant
requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC
and Mongolia, the subsidiaries of the Group in these countries
participate in respective government retirement benefit schemes
(the “Schemes") whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Monthly contributions made to the Schemes are
calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll
costs as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and
Mongolia. The relevant authorities of the PRC and Mongolia are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Schemes is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contributions represent gross
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by the relevant
authorities of the PRC and Mongolia and the MPF Scheme operated
in Hong Kong.

AEEREMBARRERESE  HEER
BEZ2M-FEEELNBARCEEDH &
BUERESHSE - HBRARE A RERBHHHR
X ZET A L HRERE AR ER] B 2 BE R
BEHFERBRME)

BETBEEREHEMEERZAN  AEEHEK
ShMEARA2IMERBRTRKRENTE (TE
8D - RAERER ZERKREMNEE B E
B - BRFT B AT R R REMREER
R zETA L E -FRAERRHERE
PRaERRKNEEXN2HENRS  AEEHE
82— BEERATEX N A 8 2 5K -

EAREMNEFEEFEAEERATEREHARE
BRIIZBEABRBEENBRARRILEBES
SHEIfE R ARRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 15. EX  {THEIBRESREE AR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS [

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s (@) EBRTHRAZMS
emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2011: ENSERABR(ZE——F : \R)ES
eight) directors and the chief executive were as follows: RITBRBE M0 T
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z-—Ft+-A=t—HLEE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and other schemes  Share-based
Fees benefits contributions payments
e RER RINER
ne Hitiz A AR G aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Executive directors YTESE
Mr. Tse Michael Nam ("Mr. Tse) A ((HEE]) = 3,558 14 - 3,572
Mr. Yang Xiaogi BEHE S - 936 - - 936
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Wu Chi Chiu it 270 - - _ 270
Independent non-executive BUkBTES
directors
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John Lim Yew Kong, John % 4 150 = = = 150
Mr. Mak Ping Leung BRE S 150 - - - 150
Mr. Leung Po Wing, RELE GBS, Ip
Bowen Joseph GBS, JP 150 - - - 150

720 4,494 14 = 5,228
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 15. EE - THHEABKEREEBAE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS [ AT
(continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EBRITBARZME ®
emoluments (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE-Z——S+ZA=+—HLHFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit

Share-based
payments Total

and other schemes

Fees benefits  contributions
e Bk RINIER

ik Hi a7 STl BRI FoE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

87 it S T L

Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Tse Hk = 2,730 12 - 2,742
Mr. King Jun Chih, Joseph SHEZRE

(resigned on 27 January (ZZ——F—-A=ttA

2011) BT) = 280 1 - 281
Mr. Yang Xiaogi BREEEE - 936 - - 936
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Wu Chi Chiu HESIEE 245 - - - 245
Independent non-executive BUEHTES

directors
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John Lim Yew Kong, John % 4 150 - - - 150
Mr. Mak Ping Leung FRREE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Leung Po Wing, PELIE GBS, P

Bowen Joseph GBS, JP 150 = = = 150
Mr. Chan Kwan Hung (resigned BBEE(CE——F

on 27 January 2011) —AZt++AEHT) 50 - 1 - 51

745 3946 14 - 4705

No directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the two years ended 31 December 2012

and 2011.

Mr. Tse is also the chief executive of the Company and his

emoluments disclosed above include those for services

rendered by him as the chief executive.

BHE_ZT——F#kK_ZT——%+_H4
=+—HBIEREFE  ARFABEZESK
EXRBHEEMNMS -

WEEFREARRBITHAAE - ERBEH

& SRR 1ER1TBAR SR (AR B U AR 9
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 15. EX - THHEEBKREREEAE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS [ EAC)

(continued)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments (b) SREEAEMS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBAAGRRTMATBRERRARA
Group, two (2011: two) were directors (including the chief (ZZ—F : MB)ES(BETBEH) -
executive) of the Company whose emoluments are set out BEZHMEHREX - BE-_ZT—=F
above. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the +ZA=+—HLFEE EH=%R(=F
emoluments of the remaining three (2011: three) highest paid —F:ZR)RaFMATZBE (BE
individuals, which are individually below HK$1,000,000 were 71,000,000/ 7C) T :
as follows:

2012 2011

—E--F —E——%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHx T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e FERIREMER 2,517 1,702

Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIKEFIFT B 41 21

2,558 1,723
(C) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to any (c) siz—z——FR-_FT——F+-4
directors, the chief executive or the five highest paid =+ —HIEREFE - AEE W ERER
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the 2E  THEAHSARRSFMA LN
Group or as compensation for loss of the office during the BE - ARSI EINAXREBHIEAMAR

two years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. SE 2 RE BB E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—ZE——F+ - A=+—HILFE

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. BERHRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Mining  Construction Leasehold and office Motor  Plantsand
structure inprogress improvements  equipment vehicles  machineries
B

BEXER
R IR HENREE  BOERE g HERRE &5t
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000
TER TEL TEL TEL TEL TAL TEL

COST A
At 1 January 2011 R=F-—F-f-A = 39976 3,19 17,692 6,789 35,840 103,493
Addltions NE = 24006 = 238 4,882 11897 41,023
Disposals ik = = - (67) 231 = (299)
Transfer et 135% (13,596) = = = = =
Exchange realignment B 8% - - 5 139 i) - 190
At 31 December 2011 R-F-——%+-A=1-A 1359 50,386 3,201 18,002 11,486 4731 144,408
Additions AE = 780 = 654 6,059 2 750
Disposals k3 = - - 65) (1309) (3683 (5013
Exchange realignment 3 = - - 4 4 - 18
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—E+-f=1-H 1359 51,166 3201 18,59 16,284 412 146,963

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZRITE
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%-A-A = = 1317 15,586 1952 1673 20528
Provided for the year Enih 970 - 797 759 1,058 7690 1274
Eliminated on disposals HEREHE = - - (13) (113 - (126)
Exchange realignment ERAE = = 5 125 I - 7
At 31 December 2011 R-E—E+-f=1-H 970 - 2119 16,457 2938 9,363 31,847
Provided for the year FREE 1,360 - 7% 623 3612 739 13,784
Eliminated on disposals HEBHH - - - 49) (902) (795) (1,746)
Exchange realignment ExA% = - - 1 % - 3
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—#+-A=1-H 2330 - 2915 17032 5,684 15,961 392

CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—E+-f=1-H 11,266 51,166 286 1,563 10,600 28160 103,041
At 31 December 2011 RZF-——F+-A=+-H 12,626 50,386 1,082 1,585 8,548 38,374 112,561
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Mining structure 10%
Leasehold improvements 33'/3% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and office 20% to 33'/3%
equipment
Motor vehicles 33'/2%
Plants and machineries 10%

17. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES
The Group acquired certain of the motor vehicles of HK$5,665,000
and leased out under finance leases during the year ended 31
December 2011. The average term of finance leases entered into is
2 years. All interest rates inherent in the leases were fixed at the

contract date over the lease terms.

16

17.

. BEREZE®
SA_E RS R R AATE B LA B A LA R R S AT
£

SN 10%

MEWERE V% RPEMHE
(AREE BE)

B BERBER 20%Z33':%

WATRM

T 33'5%

B R 10%

BMEHEEWRE

HE_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE £5H
REEE T A BE5,665,0008 T2 )TE - AEEMH
EXAHME REHAEFHELRME - FTHA
HiFEE R 2 MAOM RN EH RS (RGN & -

2012 2011
—B-C-fF —F——fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Analysed as: 8A:
Current mE - 2,826
Non-current JEREY - 1,685
- 4,511
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

17. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. BEREEWRIE )

Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
RIEHES RIEASHE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F —2——F —E——f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T FERT T
Finance lease receivables B8 & e W IR
comprise: BE
Within one year —FR - 2,914 - 2,826
In more than one year but HBim—FE
not more than two years B E - 1,701 - 1,685
— 4,615 — 4,511
Less: unearned finance W R ARERZ
income BREUA - (104) = N/A T A
Present value of minimum EWSEAELIRE
lease payment receivables - 4,511 - 4511

Effective interest rates of the above finance leases was 2.76% per
annum.

No contingent rents were recognised in income for the two years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

No impairment loss was included in the carrying amount of the
above finance lease receivables as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

There was no unguaranteed residual values of assets under finance
leases as at 31 December 2012 (2011: nil).

Finance lease receivables were secured over the motor vehicles
leased. The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral
in the absence of default by the lessee.

The finance lease receivables with carrying amount of HK$3,580,000
were derecognised upon the termination of the finance lease
agreement and recognised the motor vehicles as plant and
machinery during the year ended 31 December 2012.

ERRARE BRFHER2TCE -

BE-_Z——FR-_ZT—F+=-A=+—H1L
MEFE @ BEIALSERERA -

TR T——F+_A=+—H IE
BEEBE A Ll pERERKERAE -

R CERZE-—F+"A=t+—H @&
THEPTP EE 2 RIRBEERER -

BB B FEUCGRIE A AR A T BRI AR o AAA
WEEBNZBERT  NREEADE SR EA

EIEI'I"
BE-_Z——F+-_A=+—RHItFE  EEE

3,580,000 8 STy B & M & W FIRN B & & 17
BRI LA RERR - AR RIS MR EAR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

18. MINING RIGHTS 18.

PRIERE

HK$'000
AT

CoST R
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 RZZT——%—H—H -ZZ—F+=A
and 31 December 2012 =t+—HBR-ZZE——F+-A=1+—8 1,553,928
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT R RE
At 1 January 2011 R—Z2—F—H—H 289,536
Amortisation provided for the year FRFHR#HE 4,178
Impairment provided for the year FANFHRRE 819,000
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-A=+—H8K
—E——F+=-HA=+—H 1,112,714
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2012 N-E——FE+=-A=+—H 441,214
At 31 December 2011 RZEB—F+=_A=+—H 441,214

No amortisation was capitalised in the finished goods for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$4,178,000).

The mining rights represent mining licenses 15333A acquired in
2009 and 15449A acquired in 2010 by acquisition of a subsidiary for
the stripping of an iron ore and alluvial gold mines respectively
located in Mongolia. The mining licenses will expire on 4 December
2039 and 1 February 2040 respectively. The iron ore mine
commenced trial production during the year ended 31 December
2011.

There were no indications of impairment in the iron ore mining
rights for the year ended 31 December 2012. During the year ended
31 December 2011, there were indications of impairment in the iron
ore mining rights and impairment testing was disclosed below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+-_A=1+—ALFE

18. MINING RIGHTS (continued) 18. HRIERE =)

Impairment testing of mining rights in
relation to stripping iron ore

The directors of the Company were of the opinion that, based on
the valuation report for the mining rights of stripping iron ore as at
31 December 2011 issued by Greater China Appraisal Limited
(“Greater China”), an independent valuer, the recoverable amount
of the mining right was lower than the carrying amount in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2011 and therefore impairment loss of HK$819,000,000 was
recognised.

The recoverable amount of the mining rights of stripping iron ore is
determined from value-in-use calculations. As extracted from
Greater China’s valuation report for the recoverable amount as at
31 December 2011, the Group prepared cash flow forecast derived
from the most recent available financial budgets approved by
management and cash flows beyond 5-year period are extrapolated
using zero growth rate over thirty-four years assuming the
extension of mining licenses is available and administrative in
nature. In preparing the forecast, management made reference to
the mineral reserves presently verified and the future production
capacity according to the technical report issued by SRK Consulting
China Ltd (“SRK"). The key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculation are those regarding discount rates, anticipated changes
to future selling prices and anticipated production capacity, as
follows:

—  Management use a discount rate which is derived as the
Company's cost of capital, representing the expected return
on the Company’s capital, and assigned pre-tax discount rate
of 27.15% for the year ended 31 December 2011.

—  Future selling prices were estimated with reference to
existing and past quoted commodity prices of the mining
industry.

—  Future production capacity estimation was made in
accordance with the feasibility report issued by SRK. The
estimated production capacity per annum is expected to be
1.5 million tones in 2011.

—  Cost estimation was made in accordance with the current
market demand and condition. Additional cost is expected
for the transportation of product to locations more accessible
to buyers due to the keen competition condition and
relatively small operation during the year ended 31 December
2011.

ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ&%/ﬁﬂﬁmﬂ:ﬁt

ARREFERBEB L (GEMEETEFRA A
(DEEFED BHNEBRBEEN T ——F
TZA=T—B2EERS  KEEZAIRES
BERER-_T——F+_A=1t—HBHEHK
AASLER 2 BREIE - #R B R80R (B85 15 819,000,000 78
5T o

Wﬁ%%ﬁgﬁéz—ﬂﬂll@%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ”ﬁ%ﬁ A E
o REBENEETAEMGERS Y EERE
Eﬁé‘ T——F+-A=t+—BzukEeHE
RECR K EBABIEZ M BERETERER
ehnE BBAFHEZBESRERKRTERE
EH=TMFEHRE - WRFZRET A EAASRE
BEHBITHRIEE - E1 A B 2% SRK Consulting
China Ltd ([SRK1) = # fig 3% &5 P # B3 B8 BB TE 2
BYREERARRERGREARS RS - &R
FRBENEEEENEERHIRARE K
REETENES RIAHER - FBOT :

=+

—  EREABMABRIRKZARRERKA (A
ARRFERZEHER) MBE—T——F
T A=+ BLUEFEZEERANMBEAX
2715%EEE °

—  AKEESERARBLWEHRBRE
Bt o

—  RRERERIESRK 2 Al1T MR A fh5T - =
——F AT ARTEERE &S 1,500,000ME o

—  RAERNTHERRRRME - BRE
= ?——¢+ A=t-BILFENF
B BEBGEBRD  MRHEREE
RBERHEERZILHORAREN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

19. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION 19. iR HEE

ASSETS

HK$'000
TAT

COST R
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 RZT——F—A—H ZF——F+=A
and 31 December 2012 =t—HR=ZFE—=-F+=ZA=t+—H 7,645
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%F—H—H =
Provided for the year FREHR 7,645

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012

RZE——F+=-A=+—HEK
—E——H+-_A=+—H 7,645

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012

BREE
RZZT—=—F+=A=+—H =

At 31 December 2011

R—ZE——F+=-_A=+—H -

The directors of the Company were of the opinion that considering RRARESZRE  BERARA BN - &
the financial position of the Company, there were changes in SEABABERDEBIES - REMBEIR
allocation of financial resources within the Group. The substantial B HE — 25 8 BRIR TR AT 7] 2% 13961X J2 14955X

financial resources to further explore the area under the exploration
licenses 13961X and 14955X were neither budgeted nor planned

FpRE - MEBERTERERFEZH - &
BEEDRERLEHAUBRED BE_T——F
TZA=+t-—HLEFE DRRFIEEE

and the management decided to discontinue such exploration
activities. The exploration and evaluation assets of HK$7,645,000

were impaired during the year ended 31 December 2011.

7,645,000 L E R E °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+-_A=1+—ALFE

20. GOODWILL 20. BHE
HK$'000
FHT
COST B
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 R-_Z——F—A—H —T——F+_-H4
and 31 December 2012 =t+t—HBER=E——F+=-HA=+—H 2,666,539
IMPAIRMENT AE
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 R=ZF——F—A—H8 -Z2——F+=A
and 31 December 2012 =+—-BKkR=T—=—f+=-A=+—8” 2,666,539
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and R—_ZF—F—F—H8 -—2—%+—-A
31 December 2012 =+—BE=T—=—F+=A=+—H -
The goodwill of HK$2,653,767,000 and HK$12,772,000 was allocated 2,653,767,0007% 7T 212,772,000 T Z M EE &
to the mining operation segment and banking and finance systems RIDREFEZER D ERRITRE B EAEKR
integration services and software solutions segment, respectively, BREGBAFTRI W _F——FR_F
and was fully impaired as at 31 December 2012 and 2011. ——FF+ZA=1+—HBERE -
21. INVENTORIES 21. 7€

HK$'000

TET

Information technology products held for resale, FEEE 2 &M ER -

at cost DN 1,408 4,866
Coal merchandise held for resale, at cost FHEEE 2B IREm © IR - 12,376
Finished goods IR fh 5,780 5,780

7,188 23,022

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON- 22. Bl "FEFEEREZIEEAR

CONTROLLING INTEREST HOLDERS |
The amounts were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable ZEFEEER - RERBENEREEE -
on demand.

Annual Report 2012 « —F——&F3 121



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 1 WA 205 W Wik

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EZ R HMEWRIE
2012 2011
—E-——F =B ——%E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Trade receivables Z Z EWGRIE 52,922 36,875
Less: Impairment losses recognised B EERREEE (13,068) (12,281)
39,854 24,594
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE -~ e R E MR K GRIE 16,600 38,583
Trade deposits paid BEESE%EE 4,638 13,001
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R EMERGRIEERE 61,092 76,178
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. N SR B M A B AL B A AR AR -
The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods ranging AEE—MRETREFIKXEI10OATEZEEH -
from 30 days to 180 days which are subject to periodic review by B IE B F BiEIRET ©
management.
(@  The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of (@ MRI|EHR G MBREEIAREEERIEE
impairment losses recognised, based on the invoice dates BELHH(WAERERNEBA ) FTE
which approximated the respective revenue recognition 2 ESREWRER®RSTIOT

dates at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

2011

—F——%F

HK$'000
THET

Within 90 days 90 RA 28,350 16,994
91 days to 180 days 91 RE 180K 4,095 2,192
181 days to 365 days 181 RE 365K 1,981 2,859
Over 365 days 365 KA = 5,428 2,549

39,854 24,594

122 NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ dbii&ERERBRADE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B o 05 R ik

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—ZE——F+ - A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. 5 R HE B IE @)
(b)  The movements in provision for impairment losses of trade b EZENGIERESSREE 2 ZFHNAT
receivables were as follows:

2011
—F——F

HK$°000

T

At 1 January R—A—H 12,281 11,011

Impairment loss recognised during the year A E R EEE 1,140 1,270

Reversal during the year F R (353) -

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8 13,068 12,281
() At the end of the reporting period, the analysis of trade (€ HmEHKR BEEERREZESERR

receivables that were past due but not impaired are as ELMT :

follows:

Past due but not impaired
BEHERRE
Neither
past
due nor Less than 91 to 181to 1t02

Total impaired 90days 180days 365 days years
ESALipR DR 91Z%E 181%

@ KA 90 % 180 X 365k 1E2%

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FHET FHET THET THT FHT FET

31 December 2012 —ET—-F

+=-A=+—H 39,854 33,476 1,449 494 3,795 640
31 December 2011 —E——F

+-RA=+—8 24,594 19,834 966 1,143 1,438 1,213
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired RN RRELE S EWHIEES 25
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no W ERREHR 2 EFP AR - AEBWT
recent history of default. The Group does not hold any BHEZE &G TR -

collateral over the balances.

Annual Report 2012 « —E——FF§H 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 1 WA 205 W Wik

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—F——F+-_A=1+—RHIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

©

(continued)

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

Included in the allowance for impairment losses of trade
receivables are individually impaired trade receivables with
an aggregate balance of HK$13,068,000 (2011:
HK$12,281,000) which have been in severe financial
difficulties. During the year ended 31 December 2012, other
receivables of HK$127,000 (2011: nil) which were lost contact
with the Group were individually written off and recognised
in consolidated income statement.

As at 31 December 2012, included in the prepayments,
deposits and other receivables were mainly the prepaid legal
and professional fee paid for the Proposed Transactions.

As at 31 December 2011, included in the prepayments,
deposits and other receivables were mainly the outstanding
refund of deposit paid for terminated acquisition of certain
mines of approximately HK$28,804,000, the balance was fully
settled during the year ended 31 December 2012.

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO DIRECTORS

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand. The maximum amount outstanding for amount due from a

director during the year is approximately HK$265,000 (2011:
HK$315,000).
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23. ES REMEWRIE @)

24.

©

()
B30 B8 S5 (.2 B 5 M 308 50— e g
AREERERSEGZBIESEM -
BEAEER MRNEEERTEMEAS
LEEBDRATR2ME  RERER
ABERRE AR RERE - AEH
DB E RSS2 EAERS -

B RBSEREBERBRIELREE
B % R 2 2 B RIRE B 5 B E & X
13,068,000/ jT ( — & — — 4 : 12,281,000
BT HE_Z——F+-_HA=+—Hi1
FE - RS Yok 2 108 Bl 8 B e 58 1 AKX
S BER A BEE 7 H it B W R IE /& 127,000 78
T(ZB——F ) -

R-T——F+-A=+—8 FBEftzE -
e hEMERZEIEBERERRS

BNERREXEM -

R=ZZT——&F+=-A=+—H  Bf%aE "
ReRHEMERFIEEXZEEFEDKRIEWE
E TS 2 RRGE B RS #) 28,804,000
T EBRERBE_Z-—_F+HA
=+—HIEFEREES °

P P EBRUE

EA

EREEER  RERARERBEE - X

Y —BEEFA 2 &RB AN E 2 FEAI A 265,000
BT (ZZF——% : 3150008 T) °
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25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
At the end of the reporting period, about 86% (2011: 40%) of bank
balances and cash was denominated in RMB. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency.

The Group's bank balances and cash denominated in currencies
other than functional currencies of the relevant group entities are
set out as follows:

RMB AR

usb ET

HK$ BIT

MNT SHERER

25.

RITEHRESE

RBEEAR - RITEBRRE P H86%(ZB——
4 1 40%) BAARMHHE - ARMSIIEE MM
B o

AEBAYFRBEEERRNEEE 2 EEFHE
ZIRTRBBR LB EIIMT

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T

12 38

1,191 949
1,822 2,185

564 3,699

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to
0.36% (2011: 0.01% to 0.36%) per annum.

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26.

RITEREMSFHNENF001EE036E(=F
——F :001EZ036EFE)5E °

EZRHEMEMNRE

2011
—F——F

HK$°000
THT

Trade payables B S RIE
— third parties —F=5 2,406 2,615
— a non-controlling interest holder — —RIEERRERSE A A 325 325
2,731 2,940
Receipts in advance TEWRIE 11,909 12,981
Accrued staff costs FEEtE TR 7,829 7,217
Other taxes payable Hfh FER B IE 5,623 5,196
Accrued interests FEETAILE 7,020 -
Accrued expenses and other payables FEET & A R H M FE T3R8 23,712 22,371
58,824 50,705
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26.

27.

28.

126

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the invoiced
date at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

26.

ESREMEMSFTE®
MK - RIETE A I E 2 E 5N SRR
BAFIT :

2011

—E——%F

HK$'000

FHAT

Within 90 days 90 R A 790 1,383
91 days to 180 days 91 RE180K 387 =
181 days to 365 days 181 RE 365K 7 -
Over 365 days 365 KA = 1,547 1,557
2,731 2,940

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

OTHER BORROWING

As at 31 December 2011, the balance represented unsecured
borrowing of HK$8,000,000 which carried interest at 1.5% per
month from an independent third party. The amount was settled
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

2010 Convertible Loan Notes

On 14 September 2010, the Company issued the 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A which had a maturity date on 14 September 2013
with an aggregate principal amount of USD30,000,000. The
convertible loan notes can be converted up to an aggregate of
136,764,706 ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each. The notes were
denominated in USD and entitled the holders to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from (and including)
the date which is three months after the issue date up to ten
business days prior to the maturity date. The effective interest rate
of the liability component is 26.51% per annum. None of the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A was converted into ordinary shares of the
Company during both years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

At the issue date, the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A were
bifurcated into a liability component and an equity component. The
equity component is presented in equity under the heading of
“Convertible bonds reserve” on initial recognition.
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27.

28.

BEEMVFHIRKEHARABIOR - AEEEEE

MBERERBE - R BENRIBE NG
H\H’-SEW t:l/lEJ ©
Hitn g &

RZTB——F+-HA=+—8 ' %% 8,000,000
BLERMER  RANEISEFS BYF
=HETAEE - ZEFHEERNBE-_T——F
T-RA=t—HILFERE-

AR ERERE
—E-EFUBRRERE
RZF—TFNATMA ' AARBITARERE
#30,000,000E€ T2 AT — T F A RRE K
=i HAHR AT -—=FhA+MA - Ak
REREE A K G5&% 6 136,764,706 R EF X
EE0.01 BT LB - ZERERAEXITEE -
BTHa AEIRNETRSRER=—EAER (8
#ZB) R AR+ E% % B LHM - BEEERE
BREBARKRAALBER BEHS 2 ERFHE
R2651E - BE-T— *i&*%——¢+*ﬂ
=+—RAIERMEFE  WEABE T —TFAE
REREBELRAERAALER -
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 28. IR EREE®

2010 Convertible Loan Notes (continued)
Subsequent to the issue date, the Company and the subscriber of
the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A entered into a supplementary
agreement on 29 October 2010 (“Supplementary Agreement A”) to
amend the adjustment mechanism on the conversion price of the
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A. In accordance with the
Supplementary Agreement A, the conversion price of the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A will be adjusted to the average closing
price of one share during the month in which the financial year-end
day of the Company falls in any calendar year, plus a premium of
15% if such price is lower than the conversion price in force.
According to the Supplementary Agreement A and the
announcement dated 3 January 2011, the conversion price was
adjusted to HK$1.30 per share. The Supplementary Agreement A
was approved by the shareholders at the special general meeting
held on 18 April 2011 and approved by the Stock Exchange on the
same day. Due to the amendment of terms, the number of shares
convertible by the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A is no longer fixed,
the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A after amendment contained a
derivative component in addition to the liability component.

According to the Supplementary Agreement A, the conversion price
of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A was adjusted to HK$0.27 per
share on 3 January 2012. The details of the adjustment were set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 3 January 2012. In the event
that the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A are fully converted, a total
number of 861,111,111 new ordinary shares will be issued.

The equity component previously recognised in convertible bonds
reserve was derecognised and transferred to the accumulated
losses of the Company. The derivative component of the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A was classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss when the amendment became
unconditional and recognised as a loss on amendment of terms of
the 2010 Convertible Loan Note A during the year ended 31
December 2011.

—E-EFTBRREREE®
RWBEFEE AATEAE-_T-TETHRRE
TR RBAR-E—BE+A-FABLY
BEBE(RAHHEAD  UETAE-Z—T4
TR ERE IS L IAE 2 AR - RRH TR
BA WEAEGADRMKEFEEARER
15— RRAR 1D 2 45 U 7 18 55 10 15% i (B K30 2
ERTBAE NAB-—T-RETRBERE
B RBEEARELER  REBABIAR
AfA—2——&—A=BrAMh - HBERE
EERI0BIT  BABEAR -E——Fm A
+NBBTZREEFIASERELE - FRA
BT ST o B RMEERE EIEET - A=
T-TEURRERTE Y THBRORABE
ETHE  CETAE-_T - SETHRERS
BRESaEDHIN  TEETETASS -

REHAZGA AT - ZFTBRBRERRR
ZABMBR T —F—-A=HHBEEHR027
BT ARRABFBFHRARABNS T ——
F-—R=BZ2AfM- - HMABR-Z-—ZFAHRE
REEBH G - g T4 861,111,111 BH

A -

ZHAR AR ESHEER R0 ERILE
R UEBREARBZRAEER - AR_Z-F
FAIMBRERFR 2 ITE T AR D MERT KA
BHEDBAERAFEFABREZETHMEE X
REBEE_ZE——F1+T_A=+T—HILFE®RAE
BERTAR—Z-TFABEREFRRRIGERZEE -
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 28. IRAREREE®

2010 Convertible Loan Notes (continued)

On 12 November 2010, the Company issued convertible loan notes
(the "2010 Convertible Loan Notes B” and the “2010 Convertible
Loan Notes C") which both had a maturity date on 12 November
2013 with an aggregate principal amount of USD10,000,000 and
USD3,000,000 respectively. The convertible loan notes can be
converted up to an aggregate of 45,588,235 and 13,676,471 ordinary
shares at HK$0.01 each respectively. The notes were denominated
in USD and entitled the holders to convert them into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time from (and including) the date
which is three months after the issue date up to ten business days
prior to the maturity date. The effective interest rate of the liability
component of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes B and the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes C were 25.68% and 25.64% respectively.
None of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes B and the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes C was converted into ordinary shares of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2011.

The conversion price of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes B and the
2010 Convertible Loan Notes C will be adjusted to the average
closing price of one share during the month in which the financial
year-end day of the Company falls in any calendar year, plus a
premium of 15% if such price is lower than the conversion price in
force.

On 3 January 2011, the conversion price of the 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes B and the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes C was adjusted
from HK$1.70 per share to HK$1.30 per share. The details of the
adjustment were set out in the Group’s announcement dated 3
January 2011.

As security for the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A, 100% of the
equity interest of Green Paradise Enterprises Limited (“Green
Paradise”) with net asset value of HK$331,667,000 (2011:
HK$343,050,000) as at 31 December 2012, 1,500,987,376 (2011:
514,933,886) convertible preference shares and 155,350,000 (2011:
nil) ordinary shares held by Mountain Sky Resources (Mongolia)
Limited ("MSM") were charged to the holder of the 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A.
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RoB—TE+—A+=R  AATBTABRE
EREg(BE-E SETRREREE|RIC
- ZT-TETAREREE))  MEHR-Z
—Z&+—A+-BHH ALBEHIAE
10,000,000 3% 7t 52 3,000,000 7T » A #A B B2
B A o Bl R A& % A $£455882350% &
13,676,471 I B I E(E0.01 78 T 2 E A% -
SRAETIE BT HEAEHRETERRH
—EAEA(BEZE)BERMEA+ELER
\HERRS - BEBS IS BB M AR AT EEMR - B
TR EFARBREREERCE_T T4
HRERBIEEENH 2 KEFEH B 52563
K25 6AE - HE_T——F+_A=1+—HIF
FtmBE T TEURREREERCE
T EEARREREEARARATLER -

e aray
Z2E

e ERE R AR AP BEEEE B REA DR
Betn 2 U 8 55 0 15% 4 B R 2 B AE 2
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AE A

m |
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ffi o
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fit

AT THFARRERERZERD —
Green Paradise Enterprises Limited ([ Green
Paradise]  R=Z——F+-_A=+—H2Z2EE
F B /3316670008 T( = T — — F:
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

2010 Convertible Loan Notes (continued)

As security for the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes B, 158,163,265
convertible preference shares held by MSM were charged to the
holder of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes B. The security was
released and re-charged to holder of the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes A upon the early redemption of the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes B on 15 December 2011.

As security for the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes C, 47,448,979
convertible preference shares held by MSM were charged to the
holder of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes C. The security was
released and re-charged to holder of the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes A upon the early redemption of the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes C on 15 December 2011.

One of the undertakings under the relevant subscription
agreements (the “Subscription Agreements”) in respect of the issue
of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A, the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes B and the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes C requires Mr. King
Jun Chih Joseph (“Mr. King”) and Mr. Chan Kwan Hung (“Mr. Chan”)
to remain as executive directors of the Company, so long as the
subscribers hold any outstanding amount of the 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A, the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes B and the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes C and prior to 31 December 2014.

Both Mr. King and Mr. Chan resigned from the directorship of the
Company on 27 January 2011 (the “Resignation”) and caused a
breach of covenants of 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A, the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes B and the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes C.
Thus, it was alleged by the subscribers that the Resignation had
constituted a breach of the Subscription Agreements and an event
of default under the terms and conditions (the “Conditions”) of the
2010 convertible loan notes, which would entitle the subscribers to
give notice to the Company that each of the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes A, the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes B and the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes C is due and payable at its principal
amount. In addition, it was further alleged by the subscribers that
the resignation of Mr. King had also constituted a change of control
event as defined in the Conditions, which would entitle the
subscribers to require the Company to redeem all or some of 2010
convertible loan notes on demand.
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28. TERBREREE »)

“E-EETBRREREE @
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

2010 Convertible Loan Notes (continued)

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 15 December
2011, the Company had received redemption letters from the
subscriber of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A and the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes B (“Bond Holder A") and subscriber of the
2010 Convertible Loan Notes C (“Bond Holder B"), respectively on
30 November 2011, requesting for the redemption of the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A, the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes B and
the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes C in accordance with the
Conditions of the 2010 convertible loan notes. The Company had,
on 15 December 2011, fully redeemed the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes B and the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes C plus accrued
unpaid interest at a consideration of HK$107,834,000.

The Company and Bond Holder A had entered into a supplement
agreement (“Supplementary Agreement B”) in relation to the
alteration of certain term and conditions of the 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A on 6 January 2012. The maturity date of 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A was changed to 13 December 2012.
Various terms regarding increased charge on convertible
preference shares and ordinary shares, amendment on redemption
upon change of control and additional terms on redemption as a
result of a major assets acquisition and/or disposal and guaranteed
return were altered in accordance with the Supplementary
Agreement B. Details of the aforesaid alterations are set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 8 February 2012. Pursuant to the
resolution passed in a special general meeting on 23 February 2012,
the alterations were approved by the shareholders. A loss on
amendment of terms of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A of
HK$21,118,000 was recognised in the profit and loss during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

The Company had entered into an extension agreements on 14
December 2012 (the “Extension Agreement”) for the extension of
the completion date of the Proposed Transactions. The Bond Holder
A has also given an undertaking to and covenanted with the
Company that it will not request for any redemption of the whole or
any part of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A on or before 13
March 2013 and it will not otherwise exercise or enforce any rights
under the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A to request the Company
to redeem the whole or part of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A
on or before 13 March 2013.
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 28. TR ERFEE @

The Company and the Bond Holder A had entered into the second
extension agreement (the “Second Extension Agreement”) for the
further extension of the completion date of the Proposed
Transactions, from 13 March 2013 to 30 June 2013, subsequently on
18 March 2013. Please refer to Note 38(ii) for further details of the
extension.

The movements of the liability, equity and derivative components of
the convertible loan notes are set out below:

2010
Convertible
Loan

Notes A

AB-E-ZF
MREERE
HK$'000

RARREFFEBEAART—=F=A+/\H
VB —MERRE(E_HERGE] &
FERGNEREHH_E—=F=A+=08B#%
BE_T—=FA=1TH -B@EXHANEZF
15552 B Mt & 38(i) °

THRERREAE ERRITETAERS 2
SHHIIMT -

2010 2010
Convertible Convertible
Loan Loan
Notes B Notes C Total
BE-Z-ZF CE-Z-ZTf
TRRERERE TRRERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET

Tt Fis Fi#

Liabilities components &R
At 1 January 2011 R=—Z——F—HA—H 207,910 67,709 20,331 295,950
Effective interest expenses (Note 9) BI85 H (FE9) 53,637 16,332 4,895 74,864
Interest paid during the year FABMFE (18,719) (11,189) (3,357) (33,265)
Cash paid for redemption REOSNEE - (78,000) (23,400) (101,400)
Loss on redemption BEEER R - 5,148 1,531 6,679
At 31 December 2011 R-B——F

+-A=+—8 242,828 = = 242,828
Effective interest expenses (Note 9) BB FIE L H (K:E9) 56,073 = = 56,073
Interest paid during the year FREMFE (23,400) = = (23,400)
Loss on amendment of terms BRI 2 EiE 18,424 - - 18,424
At 31 December 2012 R-B——F

+-A=+—8 293,925 = = 293,925
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &

28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

Equity components

BT

——ft+= A=t HILFE

i

B

28. ATARER

EEw

2010

Convertible

Loan
Notes A

ABE-_Z—ZF
ﬂﬁﬁﬁ/?kmﬁ

HK$'000
THET

Total

st
HK$°000
THET

At 1 January 2011 R=—Z—F—HA—H 29,631 29,631
Derecognition of equity component of %%JHE "Hﬁﬁ EREBZ

convertible loan notes Eam (29,631) (29,631)
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 RZE—F+_A=1+—HEK

2010
Convertible
Loan
Notes A
AB=2-%F
TRBERR
HK$'000
T

2010

Convertible

Loan

Notes B

BE—Z—2F
ARRERE

HK$'000

FTET

2010

Convertible

Loan

Notes C

CE-Z-%F
TREERER

HK$'000

THT

Total

B3t
HK$'000

TET

Derivative components TETERS
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—H—H = 11,292 3,878 15,170
Loss on amendment of terms of IR RRERZ R
convertible loan notes Rz B8 24,166 - - 24,166
Change in fair value NEEEE (22,391) (11,292) (3,878) (37,561)
At 31 December 2011 —T——%+ZHR
E'I'— H 1,775 = = 1,775
Loss on amendment of terms of BRI AR ERZE
convertible loan notes KR BB 2,694 - - 2,694
Change in fair value INTEL-L) (4,469) = - (4,469)
At 31 December 2012 R-T——&F
+=A=+—8 = = - -
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 28. TR ERFEE @

The fair value of the derivative component was estimated at the
date of amendment of terms and the end of each reporting period
respectively using the binomial option pricing model. The change in
fair value of the derivative component is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. As mentioned above, the Company
had entered into the Extension Agreement and agreed not to
convert any part of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A, the fair
value of the derivative component as at 31 December 2012 is
determined to be zero.

The derivative component of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A
was revalued at 18 April 2011 and 5 March 2012, the date when the
amendment of terms became unconditional, and 31 December
2011 and 2012 based on the valuation performed by Greater China,
using the binomial option pricing model. The significant inputs to

the models were as follows:

Spot price (HK$) REE (BT
Risk free rate 2 2R B 7
Expected option period (year) T8 HA HA A HAPR (48 )
Expected volatility TEHAR 18

PTETAEBY 2 X TFESFINETET BB RS
HEHARNA ZHEEEEL (T - fTETA
B2 AFEZERIEGEE WRRER « iR EXFT
it ARRARBIVESRZE  AETEHIRAR
“T-THEUBMBRERZRE - TETATAR=
T —FF+-A=+—HZAFEEETRE -

AT —TSHEARRERZRZTEIER S
R=Z——FWHA+N\BER=Z—=F=AAH
(EFIETR BB EHFER)UR=ZE—F K=
T —FF+-RA=+—BRBEEFEMNRA=E
HEEEEAET 2 EEM - HE 2 EREA
(EUNNE

5 March 31 December 18 April
2012 2011 2011
e —EB——F —EB——F
=ZAEH +Z=H=+-H mA+N\H
0.34 0.27 1.30
0.3892% 0.5874% 1.0119%
0.78 1.71 2.41
43.91% 38.36% 44.34%
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Number of
shares Amount
ROEAE H{E
HK$'000
FHIT
Authorised: EIE
At 31 December 2011 and 2012, HK$0.01 each RZE——FR T ——F
+=—A=+—8 SK®HE
0.01%87T 77,452,700,000 774,527
Issued and fully paid: BRITRHRE :
At 1 January 2011, HK$0.01 each R=ZE—F—H—8"
BREEOEIT 851,390,960 8,514
Issue of shares upon: FEA T =BT ¢
Conversion of convertible preference shares HRnEa@ iR (fsta)
(Note a) 286,616,618 2,866
At 31 December 2011, HK$0.01 each R-_B—F+_-_A=+—8"
SHEEC.01BIT 1,138,007,578 11,380
Issue of shares upon: AR TEIREITRD :
Conversion of convertible preference shares Hgr s @ % (MI5ED)
(Note b) 56,818,181 568
At 31 December 2012, HK$0.01 each RNR-TB——&F+=-A=+—H -
BREEOEIT 1,194,825,759 11,948
Notes: B 7E
a. 0n 27 June 2011, holders of convertible preference shares converted a. RZT——F X NAZ++tH JSRELRFE
a total of 252,222,624 convertible preference shares into 286,616,618 A B ££252,222,624 B Al B i B S B H R A
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company. 286,616,618 I T AXEI1E 0.01 AT 2 AR BIRKD ©
b. On 11 October 2012, a holder of convertible preference shares b. R-ZZT—=—F+A+—H —ZAEBRELEREF
converted a total of 50,000,000 convertible preference shares into B A A 50,000,000 f% AT & #2185 B K iR A
56,818,181 shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company. 56,818,181l & AXFEI{E 0.01 B L 2 AN A "IAR S °
C. All the ordinary shares issued during the two years ended 31 C. FMERBE_ZT——FR-_FT——F+=A
December 2012 and 2011 rank pari passu with the then existing ST—HIERBEFEET2ERR  E5AHEE
ordinary shares in all respects. HR 2 TERZ A ERER o
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30. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 30. ATERE LR
Convertible preference shares at HK$0.01 each, authorised, issued FREMBE BT ZAIEBRELR  EE B%
and fully paid: TRER

Number of
shares Amount

RBE EfE
HK$'000

THET

At 1 January 2011 R=—F——F—HF—H 2,338,710,400 23,387
Conversion during the year (Note 29(a)) F A (T EE29()) (252,222,624) (2,522)
At 31 December 2011 RZZE—F+=A=+—H 2,086,487,776 20,865
Conversion during the year (Note 29(b)) A 5 (2 29(b)) (50,000,000) (500)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-_A=1+—H 2,036,487,776 20,365
On 16 December 2009, the Company issued 2,547,300,000 RZZFZENF+=-A+8 A2 EHKELDT
convertible preference shares of par value of HK$0.01 at issue price BREEAERAT([ILEER ) IEEITEFARO.50
of HK$0.50 per share in respect of the acquisition of North Asia 7 7T %% 17 2,547,300,000 IR & IR E{E0.01 & 7T 2 7]
Resources Group Limited (“NAR"). BB o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—F——F+-_A=1+—RHIFE

30. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

(continued)

The initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per ordinary share is for

each convertible preference share. The conversion rate of each

convertible preference share is determined by dividing the issue

price of each convertible preference share by the conversion price.

The major terms of the above-mentioned preference shares are set

out below:

(iif)

(iv)

The convertible preference share holders has the right,
exercisable at any time perpetual as from the date of issue,
to convert the preference shares into fully paid ordinary
shares, provided that (1) any conversion of the convertible
preference shares does not trigger a mandatory offer
obligation under rule 26 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers on the part of the convertible preference shares
holders and their concert parties who exercise the
conversion rights; (2) the number of conversion shares to be
allotted and issued upon the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the convertible preference shares
represents not more than 29.99% of the then issued ordinary
share capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis; (3) the
number of the conversion shares to be allotted and issued to
any holder of the convertible preference shares will not
result in the aggregate holding by such holder of convertible
preference shares to exceed 19.99% of the then issued share
capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis; and (4) the
public float of the shares shall not be less than 25%.

The convertible preference shares are transferable other
than to connected persons, as defined under the Listing
Rules, of the Company and do not carry the right to vote. The
convertible preference shares holders shall not be entitled to
any dividend.

The convertible preference shares shall rank pari passu with
any and all current and future preferred equity securities of

the Company.

The convertible preference shares are non-redeemable.

Based on their terms and conditions, the convertible preference

shares have been classified as equity instrument in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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30. ATEBRELRK @

AT EIRE SRR 2 V)5 B A E A EBA0.50
BT c BRATERE SR R AR RERAER
BEBRZEBTERNULREEE - LlEERZ

FEZ4

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

SREREDNANT

AEREER A AGRAETERERE
R SR I B SR R L A R R B m AR - 1E(T)
R B E LR NS EEITR LR
Rz AR E S IRAER R A AR EEE—
HITBH 2z AT BREFBRRWRBRA O 5F
AIRAISE 26 R o b IR IEZ s 2 B AT
(2) # 1 FT BB 4 45 58 i P B S S A 1T i s
RERBTZABBOBBEAARER
BEETEBRRATEE29.99% (R 2 H#
SBEE) Q) REM A EBRELKEEA
RERBTZABBOBE TEEHZA
AERELRFAEAZETREBARRA
BIE R E BT 2 19.99% (IREE#EE
) ROBDZRBHEENE LR

25% °

B EmRAAAERAR 2 BBEALIN
AERE SR EE - AW ERORE - A
HREERSEABEZAEMRS

AR B SR ER AR R R R — IR A K
RRBIEIRAE H AR EMAL -

AERER R ED -

WRIBE RN S AR I - AT BRI B SR BRNMAR & B F5R
RRDERBEATE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

31.

(continued)

On 11 February 2010, the conversion price of the convertible
preference shares was adjusted from HK$0.50 per share to HK$0.44
per share as a result of the issuance of the Placing Shares which
resulted a conversion ratio of 88 convertible preference shares for
100 ordinary shares of the Company. The details of the adjustment
are set out in the Company'’s announcement dated on 20 May 2010.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

The following is the deferred tax liability recognised and movements
thereon during the current and prior years:

30. ATEBRELR®

31.

R-ZZE—FTE_F+—H aRETEERN
AERELEK SREREROSOEBTRAEES
A20.44 87T - B E B 100 A D F L AR N
S A BRI - HEZHBHERARA =T
—ZFRAZTHZAM -

EEHRERRE
AEERBEFEDHER
HEhmT

EIETR IR A (E R AR

Mining right
BRuERE

HK$°000
TET

At 1 January 2011 R-—ZE—F—H—H 122,683
Credit to the consolidated income statement (Note 11) FTAGRA WE R (FIRE11) (81,927)
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 NR-ZE——E+-_A=+—HBxK

—E——f+=-H=+—81 40,756

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$21,105,000 (2011: HK$22,350,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses of
approximately HK$20,001,000 (2011: HK$21,777,000) may be carried
forward indefinitely. The remaining of approximately HK$1,104,000
(2011: HK$573,000) will be carried forward for 5 years from the year
in which the respective loss arose.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$66,224,000 (2011:
HK$65,084,000). No deferred tax assets have been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

RBEEBHR REBEARADARBERLD
21,105,000 7% 7t (=Z ——4F : 22,350,000 7T.)
A FRVE ST 88 AR 2R 7 o F3 P IR BB AR FE 2R 2R 4 I 2R
B B ER E MR IEEERRETERIES
7E o %78 8 18 #920,001,00058 T ( = T — —4F ¢
21,777,000 70 ) Al MR B A5 8 - HERE 1B A
1,104,000 7t (= Z — — 4 : 573,000/ 7T ) #§
EEEROENBRSFRLEHE o

RBEEPR AEEAAIHNREREZRN
66,224,0007% 7T (ZZ ——4F : 65,084,000 7T ) °
H A I 45 ER B A R HR SE RT B0 R 2 P AR
8RS 5L A B P AR B R AR AU
HRERIAEE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=—Z——

31.

32.

Gz A=+ HILFE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (continued)

Under the New Enterprises Income Tax Law of the PRC, withholding
tax is imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards (the “Post-2008
Earnings”). As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidation financial statements
in respect of temporary difference attributable to the “Post-2008
Earnings” as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31
December 2012, the Group has Post-2008 earnings of
approximately HK$3,144,000 (2011: HK$3,794,000).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The Company's current share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders on 30 May 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors, employees and
persons providing services to the Group. It was expired on 29 May
2012. Under the Scheme, the board may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
and business associates to subscribe for shares in the Company.

All the share options became lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2012. As at 31 December 2011, 26,987,029, representing
2.37% of the shares of the Company in issue remained outstanding
under the Scheme. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders and independent non-executive directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company'’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the Company's
shareholders.
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31.

32.

EEHRIBEEE @

RBEFEMCEMSEE  GHFRENBAR A
—EENF—A—HRBABRIEN (2T N\F
BEAF]) ZREBHEMKBEINF - R=ZT—=FR
—E——F+-A=1+—H AEEVXRHKI=
ST NFREN] BERZERETE  REEVH
HRREDIETETIBRAE - RE S NS E gz 5l 7
ClfGkrERE2MMHE BEABRRESEIETZR
A RAERER RN=_F—=—F+=-A=+—8 "
AEEE T N\FEREFA 3,144,000 T (=
T——4F : 3,794,000 7T) °

RIONRRZ

ARBREBRET B ([ZFE DR TR —F
AA=+THERFHEN - x?ﬁﬁﬁ% (==
RRAEERBEZ ATRHER EXR 22 —=
FRA-TABRER - BEZE EFGAM
EEREE (BRARAREMBARIES) k¥
ISR N IEARRE - URBAQ R -

ERBEEREE—_T——F+_A=t—H1
FERY - R_F——F+-_A=+—H " RE
AT BIDRAT (6 2 1 B HE 75 26,987,029 17 + AT
BRI EHERARR B EITRD Z2237% ° REAR
RERREEIEZERT - RIBZ B ALK
HZ BARREPTS Bn 42 8 - IMEMES R TSR
RRTBE BTG Z 10% © REARQFIRREE
HEZERT R —FAE LR R EAE
AALTERBZBREMS RERRBEHTZM
N8R REMKENSBERAAREETRND
Z1% ° MEERREBIIFATESR HBEAN
X A f% Z50.1% 3k {8 {E i 815,000,000 8 7T 2 #8 ik
B REREARDNERRAAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—E——&F+=-A=+—HILFE

32Z.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 32. RIRRSZ »
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

HK$1 is payable upon the acceptance of each grant. Options may BEMTRAEHEASI 1B - BIRER AER
be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the share option ERNAPRE T ——FRA-_T+ B LLER
during the option period ending on 29 May 2012. The exercise price EREERTE - TEERARAREREE - T
is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less FLORUTEEE : (VBRIERZAHARAFR
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on PUTHE : (VBEREAHIMAELEB RSN F
the offer date of the options; (ii) the average closing price of the BHWHE : K (i) AR BRGEE -

shares for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Exercise Adjusted Fair value
Date of grant Exercise period price  exercise price at grant date
BRHBHZ

RHAH 1T/ 1THEE KARITHEE DFE
HK$ HK$ HK$

BIT BT BIT

16 April 2007 From date of grant to 29 May 2012 0.355 355 0.12500
—ZTHFMA+RH AELARE=—TS——FAA=-+NH
9 July 2007 From date of grant to 29 May 2012 0.651 6.51 0.20200
—ZELFELANA HEHARE=—"Z——FRA=1+NH
20 November 2007 From date of grant to 29 May 2012 0.375 375 0.21700
“ZTHF+—AZ+H HBAEEEHE-T——FHA=-1+NH
13 March 2008 From date of grant to 29 May 2012 0.240 2.40 0.05060
—EENF=A+=H HEHARE=—Z——FRA=1+NH
15 August 2008 From date of grant to 29 May 2012 0.100 1.00 0.02474
T N\FNATAA AEHARE—T——FRA=+NH
8 October 2008 From date of grant to 29 May 2012 0.100 1.00 0.01637
—ZZENE+ANA HEHARE=—_ZT——FRA=+NH
22 December 2009 From date of grant to 29 May 2012 2.340 2.34 0.65060
“ZEEAF+-AZ+ZH BREERE-ZE——FRA=-1TNH
18 October 2010 From date of grant to 29 May 2012 1.490 1.49 0.42630
—E—ZF+A+N\H HEHARE=—"Z——FRA=1+NH
18 October 2010 From date of grant to 29 May 2012 1.490 1.49 0.36360

—Z—ZF+A+N\H HREAPE—Z——FRAA-T+NA

In accordance with the terms of the share-based arrangement, BB ZHE IR - ERITERENEK L BHE
options issued vest at the date of grant. & -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

32Z2.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 32. BRARIRXRSZ @
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Movements of the Company’s share options held by directors, FN - EF - BEREBBHMTAR R ERE
employees and business associates during the year are as follow: ZEEIT
No of share options

BREME
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding at
at 1 January during 31 December

Lapsed Outstanding at
during 31 December EXercise price

Grantee

Date of grant

2011 the year 2011
R=B—-%

T=B=t-H

AT

the year

2012 per share
R=B-=f%
TZA=t+-H

*E  SROEE

HKS

B

Directors
=
Mr. Tse 9 July 2007 100,964 = 100,964 (100,964) = 6.510
il ZZTEELANA
13 March 2008 902,193 = 902,193 (902,193) = 2.400
“TT\F=A+=H
22 December 2009 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 (1,000,000) = 2.340
ZERNETZAZTZR
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John 16 April 2007 60,822 - 60,822 (60,822) - 3550
Lim Yew Kong, John %4 ZTEEFENATAA
22 December 2009 1,500,000 = 1,500,000 (1,500,000) = 2.340
“EENETZA=+=H
18 October 2010 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 (1,000,000) = 1.490
ZZ-ZE+AT\R
Mr. Mak Ping Leung 18 October 2010 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 (1,000,000) = 1.490
ERRSE ZE-ZETATNA
Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen 18 October 2010 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 (1,000,000) = 1.490
Joseph GBS, JP
DE LS GBS, IP ZE-ZFTATNA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =—ZE——F+ - A=+—HILFE

32Z.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 32. RIRRSZ »
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

No of share options

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding at Lapsed Outstanding at
at 1 January during 31 December during 31 December Exercise price
Grantee Date of grant 2011 the year the year 2012 per share

RoB-ZF
+=A=1+-A
KT

Other employees
HitfE8
In aggregate 22 December 2009 2,000,000 = 2,000,000 (2,000,000) = 2340
£ | ZERNETZAZTZR
18 October 2010 5,800,000 (5,400,000) 400,000 (400,000) = 1.490
ZE-ZETATNR
Business associates
FBBE
In aggregate 9 July 2007 7,156,722 - 7,156,722 (7,156,722) - 6510
£ | ZZTEELANA
20 November 2007 818,649 - 818,649 (818,649) = 3750
B s
13 March 2008 5747,679 = 5,747,679 (5,747,679) = 2400
“ZT\F=A+=H
8 October 2008 300,000 = 300,000 (300,000) = 1.000
ZZT\FTANA
22 December 2009 4,000,000 = 4,000,000 (4,000,000) = 2340
“ZTNFTZAZ1+ZH
Total 32,387,029 (5,400,000) 26,987,029 (26,987,029) =
et

Weighted average exercise

price HK$3.08 HK$1.49 HK$3.40 HK$3.40 -
IETTIRE 3085 149771 340AT 34057 =
No share options granted under the Scheme were exercise during HE-ZT——K-_FT——F+=-_A=+—H1
the two years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. M F E 0 AT R AR R ek e T B 2 B AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2—ZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

33.

34.

142

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL EQUITY
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

On 2 March 2012, the Group acquired additional 47% equity interest
of Global Link Logistics LLC (“GLL"), a 33% owned subsidiary of the
Group before the acquisition, at nil consideration.

The increase in the ownership interests in GLL were dealt with in
equity, with no impact on goodwill or profit or loss.

RELATED PARTIES AND CONNECTED
PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following significant related
party transactions with related parties:

COmpensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of the directors of the Company and other

members of key management during the year was as follows:

33.

34.

W s — R B B 1 R B SMNR A M R

RZT—Z—F=A=H ' AEE U Global Link
Logistics LLC (TGLL]) &8 7N47% A% 7S 4 2= (4% B A1
GLLAREEHEE B% AR 2 WEAR]) - 4

MOLLZ BRI R R - HRENE

ALy
AR E o

BRBIRBELTXRS

B e M RRE MBSO AREZI -
SARARE TR A TEARMB TR S

AEEE

FTEEBASHE

FR - ARAEEREMEEERASZME
I

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHR FHT

Short-term benefits 52 HAE A 7,731 6,393
Post-employment benefits BEBR 12 1R A 55 35
7,786 6,428

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key executives
is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.
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35. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

(@) Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessee
The Group leases certain of its office premises and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for a term ranging from two
months to three years and rentals are fixed.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

35. &I
RIREHRR « ANEBH LA TAIE :

RERERE

A BB REEA
AEBRBEEEERHEEETETE
MERETES - NEBHHEAMEA
E=57%  HELEE -

(@

R¥RE R - RNREBRES A REHL S
EARENTHBEE 2 R REEE S AN
Nk

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBx T
Land and buildings T REF

Within one year —FR 2,562 4,233
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZENF (PREEREMFE) 632 1,660
3,194 5,893

(b) capital commitment for investment in (b) EETEBREZEREIE

a cooperation project

Contracted but not provided for

ERTAERER

2012
—E—_—F

2011
—F——%F
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
TR

5,772 6,552
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. Z<A &) Bf iR &
THE COMPANY

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Plant and equipment B K& 482 1,563
Investments in subsidiaries REIBARZIEE 230,546 230,156
231,028 231,719
Current assets REEE
Other receivables Ho A e R IE 7,391 1,952
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E e (@) 350,533 387,731
Amount due from a director U — 2 EEHIE 187 265
Bank balances and cash WITHBRES 476 13,223
358,587 403,171
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H e~ 5108 14,789 6,858
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEISHIE A RIFRIA (a) 3,241 3,334
Amount due to a director BN —RESFHIE 138 -
Other borrowing HibEE = 8,000
Derivative component of convertible R EREE
loan notes STE T BER D = 1,775
Liabilities component of convertible TR ERZEE G D
loan notes 293,925 242,828
312,093 262,795
Net current assets REBEEZRE 46,494 140,376
277,522 372,095
Capital and reserves ERRf#E
Share capital N 11,948 11,380
Convertible preference shares AT BB ST AR 20,365 20,865
Reserves i () 245,209 339,850
Total equity R 277,522 372,095
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. &2 B B #AR R &k (2
THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries (@) FEWFENHEBARRE
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and ZESBREER  REREREREE
repayable on demand. The fair values of the amounts at the B ARZSHENEHAZER  HER
end of the reporting period was approximated to the MERRZ AT EEEREERS °
corresponding carrying amounts due to their short-term
maturity.

(b) Reserves (b) %

Convertible Share
Share  Contributed bonds options  Accumulated

premium surplus reserve reserve losses

TRRES
BRiaE ANBH i BREGRE 2REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEL TAL TAL TAL

At 1 January 2011 RZE——%—-f-H 3,940,400 458,561 29,631 29,545 (3,269,610) 1,188,527
Loss for the year FEFR = - - - (848,333) (848,333)
Issug of shares upon conversion of AR A AR LR
convertible preference shares METRD (344) = = = - (344)
Derecognition of equity componentof & FEAABRE T
convertible loan notes SR ERDH = = (29.631) = 29,631 -
At 31 December 2011 RZZ—%+2A
=t+-H 3,940,056 458,561 - 29,545 (4,088,312) 339,850
Loss for the year FEEE = - - - (94,573) 94,573)
Issue of shares upon conversion of AR Rk
convertible preference shares METRE (68) = = = - (68)
At31 December 2012 WZE-Z4+ZA
=t+-H 3,939,988 458 561 = 29,545 (4,182,885) 245,209
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37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 37. RB AR ZRE
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has interests in the RIFEHIR - AR TR TG EEW B A B A

following principal subsidiaries:

-

Nominal value
Place of of paid-up share/ Proportion of
incorporation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
EdRG
E1FR B 3L 3t B HMERZEHE BERELH TEER
2012 2011
—B--F —T——F
Held directly:
EERE:
Technology Venture Investments BVI USD1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
KBRS 1,000 7T 100% 100% #REER
NAR BVI USD60,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
I EER RERIHS 60,0005 7T 100% 100%  REER
Held indirectly:
BERE
Dadizi Yuan LLC Mongolia USD100,000 100% 100%  Mining operation
SHAMAA] EE 100,0003 7T 100% 100% &
GLL Mongolia USD100,000 80% 33%  Coal logistics
EE 100,0003 7T 80% B%  EEIR
Golden Pogada LLC Mongolia UsbD100,010 99.99% 99.99%  Mining operation
EE 100,010% 7T 99.99% 99.99% i
Green Paradise BVI USD50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding of
mining operation
KBRS 50,0003 7T 100% 100%  FREEFEBHR AR
NAR Gold Fox Group Limited BVI USD50,000 100% 100%  Coal trading
KBRS 50,0003 7T 100% 100% HKKRES
Sequent China/Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Distribution of information
Limited technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
0 10,0007 7T 100% 100% P HEMBHRER MM
B AR
Technology Venture (Software) BVI USD1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
HRELEHS 1,000% 7T 100% 100% &EERK
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37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (oninesy ~ 37. R AR 2RE @)

Nominal value

Place of of paid-up share/
incorporation registered capital
BAR®G,

AR 3L 30 26 HEREFZEE

Proportion of
ownership interest Principal activities

BERRELA FEXH

Topasia Computer Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
BEERERAR B 10,000 7T
Topsoft Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
RERHEERAR B 10,000 7T
* Topasia Tech (Shanghai) The PRC Registered Capital
Limited (Note) USD3,800,000
BEe (L8 BRAR (FE)  #E AEMEAR
3,800,000 7T

“ Topasia IT (Shanghai) The PRC Registered Capital
Limited (Note) USD1,000,000
B fE BRERRS (L8) g AEMEAR
ARRAR (i) 1,000,000 % 7T

Note: Wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

For identification purpose only

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at
the end of the year or at any time during both years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.

2012 2011
=
100% 100%  Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
100% 100%  AHERRHRERK
PR BRI AR
100% 100%  Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
100% 100%  AHERRHRERK
PR BRI AR
100% 100%  Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
100% 100%  AEHERRHRERK
R E R RITARS
100% 100%  Provision of systems integration

and maintenance services
100% 100% REZREKREERE

BieE : SMBERE -

(EXS293]

EXRAIARBMBARDAEETRRIETLE
AEBEFAXERERAEEEEFEERNHNS
ZRF  BERR  REEMME DR ZFEBR
TRIEBRILE °

BENBARRATANRFELEAIREEZ =
——FRZFT——FF+ A=+ —HIMEFE
(RIS A R 2 (E 75353
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38. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(i) On 11 March 2013, a holder of convertible preference shares
converted a total of 75,000,000 convertible preference shares
into 85,227,272 shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company.

(i) Asdetailed in the Company’s announcement dated 18 March
2013, the Company and Bond Holder A had entered into
Second Extension Agreement in relation to the further
extension of the completion date of the Proposed
Transactions. Bond Holder A has also given an undertaking
to and covenanted with the Company that it will not request
for any redemption of the whole or any part of the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A on or before 30 June 2013 and it
will not otherwise exercise or enforce any rights under the
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A to request the Company to
redeem the whole or part of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes

A on or before 30 June 2013.

Details of the aforesaid extension are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 18 March 2013.
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38. HE

(0]

Hi2 =18
R-ZZT—Z=F=ZA+—H —Ra&ERE
SR A A $£75,000,000 A% A] #2448 4
& 8 4 85,227,272 B B AR EIE 0.01 BT Ay
RARRR °

BARRR -_Z—=F=A+/\B&RM
Pt - AR B EESR A AARILE (I
HpE  SEBRXZNTHE T Tt
B o BE5RA AATERKRR B R5H

HIEERKR T -—=FA=THzZ

RIER 2B BOAR T —TF R
ENRER - DTS ERABITRRE
REBETOMEBESN  EREARARNZ
T—=FXNA=1+AZAERZ I
DA T -ZEABRBRERRE -

MEEEHNARRNR_FE—=F=A
+)\EIEI’\JL4FE s
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